31 July 2008
Toyota Finance Australia Limited

TFA presents its annual financial report for the financial year ended 31 March 2008. It was
incorporated as a public company limited by shares in New South Wales, Australia on 18th June,
1982, operates under the Corporations Act 2001 of Australia and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Toyota Financial Services Corporation (“TFSC”), a Japanese corporation which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Toyota Motor Corporation (“TMC”), a Japanese corporation.

In this document, all references to "TFA" are to Toyota Finance Australia Limited, and all
references to the "Group" are to TFA and its consolidated subsidiaries.

1. Management Report

(A) Review of the development and performance of the Group’s business during the financial
year and the position of TFA and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole at
the end of the financial year

The Group’s earnings are primarily impacted by the level of average earning assets, (comprised
primarily of investments in finance receivables and operating leases), earning asset yields,
outstanding borrowings and the related borrowing cost and the impact of credit losses and
impairment of residual values.

References herein to “fiscal 2008” denote the year ended March 31, 2008 and references herein to
“fiscal 2007 denote the year ended March 31, 2007.

Profit from ordinary activities

The consolidated net profit after income tax of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 was
A$64.527 million', compared to A$44.609> million for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The following table summarises the Group's profit before income tax by operating segment for each
of the financial years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007.

12 Months
Ended 31 March
2008 2007
(A$ in Thousands)
Revenue
- Retail finance 357,352 311,159
- Wholesale finance @ 99,640 86,059
Total revenue 456,992 397,218
Profit before income tax
- Retail finance " 52,897 47,497
- Wholesale finance @ 6,802 7,969
Share of net profit of equity accounted investments 5,225 3,389
Unallocated corporate net benefit/(expenses) @) 25,937 3,622
Profit before income tax ' 90,861 62,477

!'Includes A$5,225 thousand revenue from outside operating activities (share of net profit from associates)

2 Includes A$3,389 thousand revenue from outside operating activities (share of net profit from associates)



Income tax Expense (26,334) (17,868)
Total Profit after income tax 64,527 44,609

Note

1. Retail finance comprises loans and leases to personal and business customers;

2.  Wholesale finance comprises loans and bailment facilities to motor vehicle dealers;

3. Unallocated corporate net benefit/(expenses) comprise those revenues/expenses which cannot be allocated to either
retail or wholesale finance on a reasonable basis.

Retail finance revenue grew by 14.8% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This reflects growth
in retail loans and advances with new business written at higher portfolio yields.

Retail finance profit before tax increased by 11.4% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. Retail
finance profit before tax for fiscal 2008 was affected by the following factors: (i) a proportionately
greater increase in the average cost of funds relative to the increase in portfolio yield, which has
resulted in a tightening of the finance margin; (ii) higher fee income generated primarily from
growth in loans and advances; (iii) improvements in the recovery of residual values on the sale of
motor vehicles under operating lease; and (iv) higher bad and doubtful debts expense and increases
in administration expense.

Wholesale finance revenue grew by 15.8% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The growth in
wholesale finance revenue relative to the comparative period is consistent with both an increase in
the average monthly outstanding wholesale loans and advances; and an increase in portfolio yields.

Wholesale finance profit before tax decreased by 14.6% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007.
The decline in wholesale finance profit before tax for fiscal 2008 is attributable to a proportionately
greater increase in the average cost of funds relative to the increase in portfolio yield, which has
resulted in a tightening of the finance margin.

Unallocated corporate net benefit increased by A$22.3 million in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal
2007. The improvement is attributable to a movement of A$23.3 million in other borrowing revenue
from a loss of A$0.3 million in fiscal 2007 to a gain of A$23 million in fiscal 2008. Unallocated
corporate net benefit excluding the impact of other borrowing revenue resulted in a net increase in
expenses of A$1 million. This was primarily due to a general increase in administration expenses.

Loans and Advances

Growth in net loans and advances is illustrated by the balance of A$5,678,999,000 as at 31 March
2008, compared to the balance of A$5,194,438,000 as at 31 March 2007. Overall there was growth
of 9.3% in net loans and advances in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This is a reflection of
continued strength of the new motor vehicle market in Australia and of Toyota's number one market
share position within this market. There were increases in lending in all areas — consumer lending,
commercial lending and wholesale lending — although motor vehicles under operating lease
tempered growth with a decline as at 31 March 2008 relative to 31 March 2007.

Bailment stock, comprising motor vehicles financed by the Group on behalf of dealerships,
increased by 7.4% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. Strength of Toyota sales during fiscal
2008 has contributed to the movement. The number of dealerships serviced by the Group has
declined marginally during fiscal 2008. The Group continues to focus on maintaining strong
relationships with its dealers. The bailment stock balance can be volatile as it is influenced by such
factors as the timing of the importation of new vehicles into the country and hence delivery to
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dealer car yards, changes in the product mix of vehicles towards smaller, fuel efficient, lower value
models, and run-off of older models in anticipation of a new model, as well as seasonality.

Motor vehicles under operating lease decreased by 5.8% on a gross basis in fiscal 2008 compared to
fiscal 2007. On a net of accumulated depreciation basis, the balance decreased by 7.1% in fiscal
2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This modest decline reflects the competitive fleet leasing
environment in which the Group operates and a change in the composition of the fleet portfolio
towards term loans and finance leases.

Term Loans increased by 9.7% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This is primarily due to
growth in consumer and commercial lending over the period. There was similar growth in unearned
income of 13.6% over the equivalent period. Unearned income has also been impacted by higher
portfolio yields.

Finance leases increased significantly by 22.0% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This
increase is being driven through the fleet business’ focus on finance lease products. The fleet
business has acquired a number of new customers during fiscal 2008 resulting in growth of fleet and
novated lease products.

Provisions for impairment declined as a percentage of net loans and advances (net of unearned
income) in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. (see below under “Impairment of Loans and
Advances” for further commentary).

A maturity analysis of net loans and advances (net of unearned income) follows.

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

(A$ in Thousands)
At call 1,103,495 1,031,683
Not longer than 3 months 377,535 341,505
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 12 months 1,032,632 959,283
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 3,197,042 2,902,549
Longer than 5 years 21,542 14,977
TOTAL 5,732,246 5,249,997

The increase of 9.2% in the maturity analysis total in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 has
generally been reflected in the corresponding increase in the maturity bandings in fiscal 2008
compared to fiscal 2007.

Net financing income

12 Months
Ended 31 March
2008 2007
(A% in Thousands)
Interest and similar revenue 449,076 394,355
Interest expense and similar charges (315,511) (265,455)
Net financing income 133,565 128,900
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The following table shows the average balance of each of the Group's major categories of interest-
bearing assets and liabilities, the amounts of interest revenue or expense and the average interest
rate. Monthly averages have been predominantly used, as they are representative of the Group's
operations during the relevant period.

12 Months
Ended 31 March
2008 2007
Average Average
Balance Interest Average Balance Interest Averag
(AS in (A$in Rate (A% in (A$ in e Rate
Thousands) Thousands) (%) Thousands) Thousands) (%)
Interest and similar revenue
Deposits with other financial
institutions 68,736 4,059 5.9 19,419 1,101 5.7
Lease Income 776,558 67,055 8.6 714,524 57,719 8.1
Other Loans and Advances 4,582,725 402,445 8.8 4,258,773 357,908 84
Total interest revenue 473,559 416,728
Fee and commission income 33,202 30,177
Fee and commission expense (57.685) (52,550)
Total interest and similar revenue 449.076 394.355
Interest expense and similar
charges
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions 69,920 4,246 6.1 93,483 5,456 5.8
Bonds, notes, commercial paper
and others 4,766,220 307,178 6.4 4,356,393 256,696 5.9
Transaction costs 4,087 3,303
TOTAL 315,511 265,455

Interest revenue increased by 13.6% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This is influenced by
the 8.7% growth in average loans and advances balances over the same period and also is a
reflection of new business written at higher portfolio yields.

The Group’s fee and commission income has increased by 10.0% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal
2007. This is due to growth in the loans and advances portfolio and efforts made to widen the
customer fee paying base to counteract the narrowing of finance margins in the Group’s core
business.

Fee and commission expense increased by 9.8% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007, primarily
due to growth in the average loans and advances portfolio over the same period.

Interest expense and similar charges (excluding transaction costs) increased by 18.8% in fiscal 2008
compared to fiscal 2007, primarily due to the following two factors, (i) an increase in average
borrowing balances over the same period of 8.7% to fund the growth in loans and advances, and (ii)
a rising interest rate environment. The Group uses derivative contracts as part of its interest rate
risk management program.
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Expenses

12 Months
Ended 31 March
2008 2007

(A$ in Thousands)
Employee benefits expense 37,218 32,459

Other expenses
- Rental expense relating to 3,504 3,421
operating leases
- Net (gain)/loss on disposal of
leased and fixed assets (3,643) 2,375

Employee benefits expenses records the payroll expense of permanent and temporary staff along
with the associated on costs such as pension costs, taxes, recruitment costs and training costs. The
increase of 14.7% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 reflects an increase in payroll cost driven
by an increase in headcount and by pay increases.

Rental expense relating to operating lease records property rental expenses under non-cancellable
operating leases. Rental expense has remained consistent with the prior period, a result of there
being no significant changes in the premises in which the Group’s operations reside.

The sale of assets has resulted in a net gain of $3.6 million during fiscal 2008 from a loss of $2.4
million in fiscal 2007. The recent release of new models, improved residual value setting and
disposal practices have contributed to the improvement in the net gain/loss on sale of assets.

Other borrowing (revenue)/costs

12 Months
Ended 31 March

2008 2007

(A$ in Thousands)
Other borrowing (revenue)/costs (22,956) 378

This balance represents the unrealised fair value movement in derivatives outstanding, net of
foreign currency gains/losses arising on translation of foreign currency bonds and commercial paper
for the period to balance date. Realised fair value movements in financial derivatives, in the form
of actual cash settlements of interest coupons and accrued interest, are recorded in interest expense
and similar charges.

The net unrealised fair value (gain)/loss is a reflection of the movement in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and the future cash flow profile of outstanding derivatives. The current year gain
reflects favourable movement in these factors during fiscal 2008. Reference should be made to the
Group's Financial Report regarding management’s objectives and policies governing the use of
financial derivatives. All derivatives, bonds and commercial paper are currently held to maturity.
Recognition of unrealised fair value and translation gains and losses may introduce volatility in the
Group's earnings and produce anomalous results.
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Impairment of Loans and Advances

The Group's level of credit losses is influenced primarily by two factors: the total number of
contracts that default ("frequency of occurrence") and loss per occurrence ("loss severity"). The
Group maintains an allowance for credit losses to cover probable losses.

As at
31 March 31 March
2008 2007
(A$ in Thousands)
Provision for impairment of loans and advances
Opening balance 55,559 54,835
Bad debts written off A (15,124) (10,858) -
Charged to profit and loss 12,812 11,582
Closing balance 53,247 55,559
12 months
Ended 31 March
2008 2007
(A$ in Thousands)
Bad and doubtful debts expense
Recovery of bad debts written off (2,664) (3,101)
Charge to profit and loss 12,812 11,582
Total bad and doubtful debts expense 10,148 8,481

Provisions for impairment of loans and advances are established when there is objective evidence
that the Group is unlikely to collect all amounts due under the original terms of the contract and are
considered adequate to cover expected credit losses as of 31 March 2008.

The total provision for impairment of loans and advances as at 31 March 2008 is A$53.2 million or
0.93% of net loans and advances before provisions compared to A$55.6 million or 1.06% of net
Joans and advances before provisions at 31 March 2007. The provision as a percentage of
receivables has reduced compared to the prior year. This is predominately a result of the reduction
in the residual value loss provision and growth in loans and advances relative to the take up of
provisions.

The increase in bad and doubtful debt expense is attributable to (i) a general increase in write-off’s
of retail term loans reflecting economic conditions arising from a rising interest rate environment
and growth in loans and advances; and (ii) the financial statements for fiscal 2007 including a one-
off recovery in connection with the claw back of indirect tax, relating to terms loans in default.
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Cashflows

Abridged Statement of Cashflows

12 Months
Ended 31 March
2008 2007
(A$ in Thousands)

Net cash outflow from lending and other operating

activities (538,657) (438,500)
Interest received 473,560 416,727
Net income taxes paid (22,066) (26,841)
Interest paid (299,075) (255,285)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (386,238) (303,899)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (3,239) (10,743)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 394,317 310,964
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held 4,840 (3,678)

Cashflows provided by operating, investing and financing activities have been used primarily to
support asset growth.

In fiscal 2008 an inflow of funds of $394.3 million and a net interest inflow of $174.5 million were
used to finance increased lending of $539.0 million. There was a $4.8 million improvement in the
Group's net cash position during the year.

In fiscal 2007 an inflow of funds of $311.0 million and a net interest inflow of $161.4 million were
used to finance increased lending of $438.5 million. There was a $3.7 million decline in the
Group's net cash position during the year.

The Group believes that cash provided by operating and financing activities as well as access to
domestic and international capital markets and the issuance of commercial paper will provide
sufficient liquidity to meet future funding requirements.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The consolidated entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The consolidated
entity’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the consolidated entity.
The consolidated entity does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are used to
manage the consolidated entity’s exposure to currency risk and interest rate risk.

Risk management is carried out by various committees and departments based on charters or
policies approved by senior management.
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Asset and Liability Committee

An Asset and Liability Committee, convened monthly, to proactively and collaboratively manage
and monitor the interest rate and liquidity risks of the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity’s
Treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Treasury department
implements the consolidated entity’s policies to manage the consolidated entity’s foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk with financial intermediaries, and liquidity risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The consolidated entity operates in international capital markets to obtain debt funding to support
its earning assets. Transactions may be denominated in foreign currencies, exposing the
consolidated entity to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures.

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency and net investments in foreign operations. The risk is measured
using debt maturity analysis.

Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange
risk against their functional currency. The consolidated entity is required to hedge 100% of its
foreign exchange risk at the time of debt issuances. Derivative financial instruments are entered
into by the consolidated entity to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk, including:

e Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk arising on the issue of
commercial paper in foreign currencies; and

e Cross currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with
foreign currency denominated medium term notes.

The consolidated entity’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date is immaterial.
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
consolidated entity is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates as it borrows and lends funds at both floating and fixed rates. Derivative financial
instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to manage its exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk, including:

o Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the
consolidated entity’s earning assets. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of
converting loans and advances from fixed rates to floating rates.

o Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the
consolidated entity’s functional currency denominated fixed tate medium term notes. Such
interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from fixed rates to
floating rates; and

e Cross currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with
foreign currency denominated medium term notes. Such cross currency swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrowings from foreign denominated fixed rates to functional
currency floating rates.
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Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at
specified intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates, and floating rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the cross
currency swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals,
foreign currency principal and fixed rate interest amounts, and functional currency principal and
floating rate interest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed functional currency principal
amount.

The Group’s policy is to maintain 100% of its debt exposure in functional currency at floating rate
(generally quarterly BBSW), using interest rate swaps or Cross currency swaps to achieve this when
necessary. The consolidated entity’s policy is to maintain between 20% and 50% of its loans and

advances funded at floating rate (generally quarterly BBSW), using interest rate swaps to achieve

this when necessary.

The following table details the Group's exposure to interest rate risk as at 31 March 2008 and 31

March 2007.
Weighted Fixed Interest Rate
Average Variable Non
Interest Interest Less than 1to5 Interest
31 March 2008 Rate Rate 1 year years Bearing Total
% (A$000) (A$000) (A$000) (A$000) (A$000)

Financial Assets
Cash and liquid assets 5.9% 11,056 - - - 11,056
Loans and advances 8.5% 1,103,495 1,657,857 3,739,626 - 6,500,978
Total financial assets 1,114,551 1,657,857 3,739,626 - 6,512,034
Financial Liabilities
Other liabilities - - - - 221,111 221,111
Bank overdrafis 7.4% - 18,000 - - 18,000
Commercial paper 7.4% 664,503 - - - 664,503
Medium term notes 7.5% 4,999 898,433 3,349,221 - 4,252,653
Employee entitlements - - - - 3,761 3,761
Interest rate swaps - 1,371,883 335,298 (1,707,181) - -
Total financial liabilities 2,041,385 1,251,731 1,642,040 224,872 5,160,028
Net financial assets (926,834) 406,126 2,097,586 (224,872) 1,352,006
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Weighted Fixed Interest Rate

Average Variable Non
Interest Interest Less than 1to5 Interest
31 March 2007 Rate Rate 1 year years Bearing Total
% (A5000) (A$000) (A$000) (A$000) (A$000)

Financial Assets

Cash and liquid assets 5.7% 6,216 - - - 6,216
Loans and advances 8.0% 1,031,683 1,524,981 3,380,929 - 5,937,593
Total financial assets 1,037,899 1,524,981 3,380,929 - 5,943,809
Financial Liabilities

Other liabilities - - - - 195,137 195,137
Bank overdrafts 6.3% - 178,000 - - 178,000
Commercial paper 6.4% 497,048 - - - 497,048
Medium ferm notes 6.4% 92,759 1,185,583 2,599,090 - 3,877,432
Employee entitlements - - - - 3,516 3,516
Interest rate swaps - 835,196 111,119 (946,315) - -
Total financial liabilities 1,425,003 1,474,702 1,652,775 198,653 4,751,133
Net financial assets (387,104) 50,279 1,728,154 (198,653) 1,192,676

Credit Risk

The consolidated entity’s Treasury manages credit risk through the use of external rating such as
Standard and Poor’s rating or equivalents, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterparty
financial condition and master netting agreements in place with all derivative counterparties.

The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entity’s money market deposits and
derivatives relating to treasury funding activities, based on the Standard & Poor’s rating.

Consolidated Consolidated

Rating 2008 2007
% %
AAA 34 25
AA+ 4 10
AA 21 46
AA- 27 3
A+ 6 5
A- 4 -
A 4 11
100 100

The Group does not currently anticipate non-performance by any of its counterparties and has no
reserves related to non-performance as of 31 March 2008. The Group has not experienced any
counterparty default during the 12 months ended 31 March 2008.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group requires, in the normal course of business, substantial funding to support the level of its
earning assets. Significant reliance is placed upon the Group's ability to obtain debt funding in the
capital markets in addition to funding provided by earning asset liquidations and cash provided by
operating activities. Debt issuances have generally been in the form of domestic commercial paper,

euro commercial paper, domestic medium term notes and euro medium term notes.
Commercial Paper
Commercial paper issuances are used to meet short-term funding needs.

Domestic commercial paper issued by TFA and outstanding ranged from approximately A$ 10
million to A$ 445 million during the year ended 31 March 2008, with an average outstanding
balance of approximately A$ 275 million.

Euro commercial paper issued by TFA and outstanding ranged from the equivalent of
approximately A$ 27 million to the equivalent of approximately A$ 453 million during the year
ended 31 March 2008, with an average outstanding balance of the equivalent of approximately A$
206 million.

Medium Term Notes

Long term funding requirements are met through the issuance of a variety of debt instruments in
both the Australian and international capital markets. Domestic and Euro medium term notes
("MTNs") have provided TFA with significant sources of funding in years prior to fiscal 2008.
During the year ended 31 March 2008, TFA issued approximately A$ 1,750 million of Euro MTNs
all of which had original maturities of one month or more.

The original maturities of all MTNs outstanding at 31 March 2008 ranged from 12 months to 7.1
years. As of 31 March 2008, TFA had total MTNs outstanding of A$ 4,402 million, of which A$
1,315 million was denominated in foreign currencies.

TFA anticipates continued use of MTNs. The Programmes under which MTNs are issued by TFA
in the Australian and international capital markets may be expanded or updated from time to time to
allow for the continued use of these sources of funding. In addition, TFA may issue notes in the
Australian and international capital markets that are not issued under its MTN programmes.

Back Up Liquidity

For additional liquidity purposes, TFA maintains the following bank facilities: an overdraft facility,
committed commercial paper back up facilities, committed banking facilities and uncommitted
money market funding facilities which aggregated A$ 1,110 million as at 31 March 2008. The
average aggregate amount outstanding under these facilities during the year ended 31 March 2008
was approximately A$ 135 million.
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Credit Ratings

The cost and availability of unsecured financing is influenced by credit ratings, which are intended
to be an indicator of the creditworthiness of a particular company, security or obligation. Lower
ratings generally result in higher borrowing costs as well as reduced access to capital markets.
Credit ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities and are subject to revision or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency. Each rating agency may have different
criteria for evaluating risk, and therefore ratings should be evaluated independently for each agency.

Contractual Obligations and Credit Related Commitments

The Group has certain obligations to make future payments under contracts and credit-related
financial instruments and commitments. Aggregate contractual obligations and credit-related
commitments in existence at 31 March 2008 are summarised as follows:

Commitments expiring within the following periods
Longer than 1 year

Not longer and not longer than Longer than
than 1 year 5 years 5 years
(A$ in Millions)
Contractual Obligations:
Premises occupied under lease 3.0 11.9 3.9
Total debt 1,580.9 3,332.3 21.9
TOTAL 1,583.9 3,344.2 25.8

TFA has provided guarantees totalling A$764,000 (2007: A$764,000) to third parties on behalf of
three motor vehicle dealers.

TFA, as a member of the Toyota Motor Company of Australia Limited GST (goods and services
tax) Group, is jointly and severally liable for 100% of the GST payable by the GST Group of
A$8,840,000 as at 31 March 2008 (2007: A$5,941,000). TFA believes the assets of the other
members of the GST Group are sufficient to meet their GST liabilities.

TFA, in association with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, implemented
the tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia
Limited ("TMCA") as the Head Entity. Under the tax consolidation legislation, tax consolidation
entities are jointly and severally liable for the tax liability of the consolidated tax group unless a tax
sharing agreement has been entered into by member entities. A tax sharing agreement has been
executed. TFA believes the assets of the Head Entity are sufficient to meet the tax liabilities as they
fall due.

TFA has been notified by the Australian Taxation Office of adjustments to its income tax returns
relating to years prior to the implementation of the tax consolidation legislation. TFA expects that
any cost or impost which arises in relation to this matter will be offset by an intercompany
receivable. '
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The range of Toyota Extra Care warranty contracts offered by TFA since August 2003, provide an
extended warranty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium payment. The risk of
claims has been fully insured with a third party insurer. TFA considers the insurance of risk is
sufficient to meet any claims which may eventuate.

The previous range of Toyota Extra Care warranty contracts, offered by TFA until August 2003 and
now in run-off, provided an extended warranty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium
payment. Recognition of premium income has been spread over the warranty period to match the
expected pattern of claims. A varying degree of risk has also been insured with a third party
insurer. TFA considers the amount correctly deferred and the partial insurance of risk is sufficient
to meet any claims which may eventuate.

A fully maintained operating lease is offered under the Group's current portfolio of products. Fully
maintained operating leases obligate the Group to provide agreed services at the Group's expense. A
charge is added to the monthly operating lease rental to compensate the Group's obligation. Agreed
services expensed periodically throughout the course of the contract are recognised in the income
statement when incurred.

Litigation continues against the Group by the liquidator of a former customer seeking repayment of
a number of alleged preferential payments/uncommercial transactions made prior to its insolvency.
The Group has sought legal advice and is of the opinion that the claim can be successfully resisted.
Due to the nature of the matter, further information normally required by AASB 137 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, is not provided.

The Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit in the normal course of business.
Outstanding credit commitments provided to customers which were undrawn as at the end of fiscal
2008 and 2007 are shown below.

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

(A$ in Thousands)
Term loans 28,828 20,965
Bailment stock 230,531 296,002
Fleet facilities 310,172 304,483
TOTAL 569,531 621,450

Employees
At 31 March 2008, the Group had 379 adjusted full-time equivalent employees. Adjusted full-time

equivalent employees includes staff on maternity leave, outbound secondments and 32 part time
employees but does not include temporary or contractor staff.
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The number of employees by business cost centre as of 31 March 2008 is as follows:

Adjusted FTE Temporary Contractor
Location Employees Staff Staff
Executive 22.5 - -
Corporate Services 40 5 0.5
Business Services 115.5 6 16.5
Dealer Sales 103 7.5 1
Fleet Sales 51.5 1 1
Customer Direct Sales 30 1.5 4.5
Toyota Insurances Sales 16.5 2 -
Total 379 23 23.5

The average age of TFA's employees is 38 years. The average number of years of employment of
TFA's employees is 4.4 years, and the annual average total remuneration (including bonuses) of
TFA's employees was AUD$80,320.

There has been no significant increase in staff numbers over the last 12 months.

TFA considers its employee relations to be satisfactory.

(B)  Risks and Uncertainties facing the Group

The Group is exposed to certain risks and uncertainties that could have a material adverse impact
directly or indirectly on its financial condition and operating results:

Possible Increase in Prevailing Market Interest Rates

An increase in the interest rates charged by the Group's lenders or available to the Group in the
capital markets may adversely affect the Group's income.

As the Group’s assets consist primarily of fixed rate contracts, it is not able to reprice its existing
fixed rate contracts and may be unable to raise the amount of monthly or other periodic repayments
on new fixed rate contracts.

The Group's Assets are subject to Prepayment Risk

Customers may terminate their finance and lease contracts early. As a result, the Group estimates
the rate of early termination of finance contracts in its interest rate hedging activities.
Consequently, changes in customer behaviour contrary to the Group's estimates may affect its
financial condition and results of operations.

Factors Affecting Net Income

The Group's net income is subject to a variety of factors, including changes in the overall market for
retail or wholesale motor vehicle financing, leasing or dealer financing, changes in the level of
sales of Toyota vehicles or other vehicles in Australia, the number and average balance of customer
accounts, the Australian finance industry's regulatory environment, competition from other
financiers, rates of default by its customers, the interest rates it is required to pay on the funding it
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requires to support its business, amounts of funding available to it, changes in the funding markets,
the used vehicle market, changes in its credit ratings, the success of efforts to expand its product
lines, levels of operating expenses and general and administrative expenses, including but not
limited to labour costs, technology costs and premises costs, general economic conditions in
Australia and other factors. '

Controlling Shareholder

All of the outstanding capital stock and voting stock of TFA is owned directly by TFS. TFSisa
wholly-owned holding company subsidiary of TMC.

As a result, TFS effectively controls TFA and is able to directly control the composition of the
Board of Directors of TFA and direct the management and policies of TFA.

TFA raises most of the funding it requires to support its business from the domestic and
international capital markets. The cost and availability of that funding is influenced by credit
ratings. Lower credit ratings generally result in higher borrowing costs as well as reduced access to
capital markets.

The credit ratings for notes, bonds and commercial paper issued by TFA, being as of 31 March
2008:

Rating Agency Long Term Short Term
Standard & Poor's AAA A-1+
Moody's Aaa P-1

depend, in part, on the existence of certain credit support agreements involving TFSC and TMC and
on the financial condition and operating results of TMC. The credit support arrangements may be
amended, provided that such amendment does not have any adverse effects upon any holder of any
Notes outstanding at the time of such amendment, and does not require the acceptance of the rating
agencies.

If TFA for any reason does not have the benefit of the credit support agreement arrangements
described above for future funding, TFA expects that the credit ratings applying to that funding
would be substantially lower than the credit ratings for notes, bonds and commercial paper issued
by TFA as of 31 March 2008, leading to either significantly constrained access, or no access, to the
domestic or international capital markets, substantially higher borrowing costs and potentially an
inability to raise the volume of funding necessary for it to operate its business.

Sales of Motor Vehicles (Toyota and Non-Toyota Vehicles)

TFA’s business is substantially dependent upon the sale of Toyota vehicles and its ability to offer
competitive financing in its market place. TFA’s business is also substantially dependent upon
Toyota and other vehicle dealerships to introduce new finance and lease business to TFA and such
dealerships are free to introduce other financiers to their customers. Competition in respect of
commission payments to Australian dealerships from other financiers, as well as changes in
ownership or financial viability of such dealerships may adversely affect the financial condition and
results of operations of TFA.

TMCA is the primary distributor of Toyota vehicles ("Toyota vehicles") in Australia.
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Higher levels of sales of new and used Toyota vehicles in Australia relative to the level of sales of
new and used vehicles of other makes are favourable for the Group's business. Lower levels of
sales of new and used Toyota vehicles in Australia relative to the level of sales of new and used
vehicles of other makes are not favourable for the Group's business.

Factors which may affect the level of sales of new and used Toyota vehicles relative to the level of
sales of new and used vehicles of other makes include:
e changes in sales volumes resulting from governmental action;
changes in consumer demand;
changes in the level of TMCA sponsored finance programmes;
increased competition;

changes in the effectiveness of motor vehicle dealers selling Toyota vehicles relative to
those selling vehicles of other makes;

changes in pricing of imported units due to currency fluctuations or other events; and -

o significant increases in fuel prices affect sales in the larger Toyota vehicle range adversely,
but may increase sales in the smaller Toyota passenger vehicle range.

Residual Value Risk

Residual value risk is the risk that the estimated residual value at lease origination will not be
recoverable at the end of the lease term. When the market value of a leased vehicle at contract
maturity is less than its contractual residual value, there is a higher probability that the vehicle will
be returned to TFA. A higher rate of vehicle returns exposes TFA to greater risk of loss at the end
of the lease term.

Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts

The Group cannot assure that its allowance for bad and doubtful debts will be adequate to cover
future credit losses. Increases in credit losses could adversely affect the Group’s financial condition
and results of operations. ‘

Risk of Catastrophes

The Group’s business is exposed to the risk of catastrophes, including natural events, such as
hurricanes, tornados, earthquakes and fires, and other events, such as explosions, terrorist attacks,
and riots. The incidence and severity of catastrophes and severe weather conditions are inherently
unpredictable. These events may affect consumer spending in the vicinity of the disasters and may
otherwise adversely affect the Group’s business, earnings, or financial condition.

Large Exposures

A large exposure refers to the degree of concentration in a loan portfolio or a segment of a loan
portfolio. TFA has a large exposure t0 a number of dealerships and fleet customers. In particular,
dealerships may have common ownership and TFA may make bailment and loan advances to those
groups of dealerships. Failure of a dealership or fleet customer to which TFA has a large exposure
may adversely affect the financial condition and results of operations of TFA.
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Impact of Changes to Accounting Standards

The financial report for the year ended 31 March 2008 has been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (“AIFRS”).

The International Accounting Standards Board ("TASB") is continuing its program to develop new
accounting standards where it perceives they are required and to rewrite existing standards where it
perceives they can be improved. In particular the IASB and the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in the USA continue to work together to harmonise the accounting standards of the USA and
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). Any future change in IFRS may have a
beneficial or detrimental impact on the reported earnings of the Group, where they are adopted by
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (“AASB”).

Increasing Competition

The Australian financial services industry is highly competitive and the Group has no control over
how Toyota dealers source financing for their customers. Competitors of the Group include
commercial banks, credit unions and other financial institutions. To a lesser extent, the Group
competes with other motor vehicle manufacturers® affiliated finance companies. Intense
competition in respect of interest rates in financing and leasing may adversely affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Australian Economy

If economic conditions in Australia were to weaken, the amount of non-performing finance
contracts, provisions for doubtful debts and debt write-offs may increase. Increases in credit costs
would have a negative impact on the Group's financial condition and results of operations.

If economic conditions in Australia were to weaken, customer demand for the Group's products and
services may lessen, having a negative impact on the Group's financial condition and results of
operations. If this lessened customer demand was accompanied by an increase in eatly repayment
of contracts by customers, the negative impact on the Group's financial condition and results of
operations would be worsened.

If economic conditions in Australia were to weaken, this may adversely affect conditions in the
domestic capital markets and the cost and availability to TFA of funding from the domestic and
international capital markets.

If economic conditions in Australia were to strengthen to the extent that there was an increase in
prevailing market interest rates in Australia, the considerations mentioned in "Possible Increase in
Prevailing Market Interest Rates" above may, in some circumstances, apply.

International Economy

If international economic conditions were to materially weaken, this may adversely affect the

Australian economy which may in turn adversely affect the Group's financial condition and results
of operations.
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If international economic conditions were to weaken, this may adversely affect conditions in the
domestic and international capital markets and the cost and availability to TFA of funding from
those markets.

If international economic conditions were to weaken, this may adversely affect the ability of TMC
and TFS to meet their obligations under the credit support agreements mentioned above.

Changes to Australian Laws or Regulations

Future changes to Australian laws or regulations may have a negative impact on the Group's
business or require significant expenditure by the Group to ensure compliance with those laws or
regulations so that it can effectively carry on business.

Changes to International Laws or Regulations

Future changes to international laws or regulations may have a negative impact on the Group's
business or require significant expenditure by the Group to ensure compliance with those laws or
regulations so that it can effectively carry on business.

Australian Taxation

The Group is subject to numerous tax laws and is required to remit many different types of tax
revenues based on self assessment and regulation. The Group interprets the tax legislation and
accounts to the authorities based on its knowledge of the tax laws at the time of its assessment. Tax
laws, or the interpretation thereof, are subject to change through legislation, tax rulings or court
interpretation. Changes to the application or interpretation of tax laws may adversely impact the
Group's financial condition and results of operations.

The Group may also be subject to an audit by tax authorities for up to seven years after its self
assessment. If the Group has not accounted correctly for its tax liabilities, this may adversely
impact the Group's financial condition and results of operations.

Insolvency Laws

In the event that TFA becomes insolvent, insolvency proceedings (including, without limitation,
administration under the Corporations Act 2001 of Australia) will be governed by the applicable
laws in force in Australia or the law of another jurisdiction determined in accordance with
Australian law. Those insolvency laws, as so applied and interpreted, may be different from the
insolvency laws of certain other jurisdictions. In particular, the voluntary administration procedure
under the Australian Corporations Act, which provides for the potential re-organization of an
insolvent company, differs significantly from Chapter 11 under the United States Bankruptcy Code
and may differ from similar provisions under the insolvency laws of other non-Australian
jurisdictions. If TFA becomes insolvent, the treatment and ranking of holders of Notes issued by
TFA and TFA’s other creditors and shareholders under the relevant governing law may be different
from the treatment and ranking of those persons if TFA was subject to the bankruptcy laws of the
United States or insolvency laws of another jurisdiction.
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity prices and other relevant market parameters. These changes will negatively
affect the Group’s income, capital and value. Policies governing market risk exposure are
established and periodically reviewed by the Group’s senior management as conditions warrant.
The Group uses derivative instruments, along with other tools and strategies, to manage its market
risk. The Group has established procedures to ensure that its risk management, including its use of
derivatives, is in accordance with its policy framework.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from, among other factors, inadequate or failed
processes, systems or internal controls, theft, fraud, or natural disaster. Operational risk can occur in
many forms including, but not limited to, errors, business interruptions, failures of control,
inappropriate behaviour of or misconduct by employees or those contracted to perform services, and
vendors that do not perform in accordance with their contractual agreements. These events can
potentially result in financial losses or other damages to the Group, including damage to reputation.

The Group relies on internal and external information and technological systems to manage its
operations and is exposed to risk of loss resulting from breaches in the security, or other failures of
these systems.

The Group strives to maintain appropriate levels of operational risk relative to its businesses
strategies, competitive and regulatory environment, and markets in which it operates.
Notwithstanding these control measures, the Group remains exposed to operational risk. However,
while the Group’s approach to operational risk management is intended to mitigate such losses,
management can provide no assurance that these problems will not have a material effect on the
Group’s financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory risk is the risk arising from the failure to comply with applicable regulatory
requirements and the risk of liability and other costs imposed under various laws and regulations,
including changes in legislation and new regulatory requirements.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk arising from the inability to meet obligations when they are due. The
Group's liquidity strategy is to maintain the capacity to fund assets and repay liabilities in a timely
and cost-effective manner under adverse market conditions.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a failure of a customer or dealer to meet the terms of any
contract with the Group or otherwise fail to perform as agreed. The level of credit risk on the
Group’s wholesale, retail, fleet and lease portfolios is influenced primarily by two factors: the total
number of contracts that default and the amount of loss per occurrence, which in turn are influenced
by various economic factors, the used vehicle market, purchase quality mix, contract term length
and operations changes.

Page 19




In addition, the Group is subject to the risk that a counterparty may fail to perform on its contractual
obligations in a derivatives or money market contract.

Toyota Extra Care

Under an agreement with TMCA, TFA markets, administers and accepts the liability for claims
arising under a range of factory extended warranty products marketed through Toyota Dealers to
purchasers of Toyota vehicles. Since TFA acquired the rights to market the factory extended
warranty products from TMCA, it has re-insured part of or all of its liability for claims ("claims
risk™) in respect of new and used Toyota vehicles with licensed insurers ("the re-insurers”). A
change in the pattern of claims in respect of partially re-insured factory extended warranties, the
ability of the re-insurers to meet their obligations or a change in TFA's re-insurance practices has
the potential to adversely impact the financial condition and results of operations of TFA.
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2. Auditors Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The dircelors present this report on the consolidated entity consisting of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (“the
company”) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 31 March 2008:

L DIRECTORS

The dircetors of the company at any lime during or since the end of the year are:

R.P. Springer (Managing Director) . Director since 1985.

D.H. Shmith Dircetor since 1988,

1LH. Conomos Director since 1993,

H. Ozuki Ditector since 2001,

H. koma Director since 2007,

1.R. Chandier Nirector since 2007,

C.Euers Director since 2007,

T. ljichi Appointed director on27 June 2006.

M. Yasuda Appointed director on 22 June 2007,

E. Hirano Appointed director on 24 August 2007.

N, Tsurumi Resigned as a director on 24 August 2007.

T. Okada Resigned as a director on 1 June 2007.

1. Watanabe (Alternate for H. Ozaki) Alternate director since 2003,

K. Mukaiyama (Alternate for T. Tjichi) Alternate director since 2006,

H. Obata (Alternate for N. Tswruuii ) Resigned as an alternate director on 24 August 2007,
H. Obata (Alternate for E. Hirano) Appointed alternate director on 24 Aughist 2007.




TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

DIRECTORS® REPORT (continued)
2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year the principal continuing activities of the consolidated entity were:

»  To financs the purchase by dealers of new Toyota, Lexus and Hino vehicles as well as used vehicles of any
make for resale;

«  To finance motor vehicle acquisitions in the form of leasing, term purchase, consumer and commercial
loans;

s To provide bailment facilities and commercial loans to motor dealers;

o To provide operating lease and fleet management services;

e To administer and manage extended wirranty and insurance products; and

o To provide consumer finance including personal loans and real estate loans.

There were no significant chianges in the nature of these activities during the petiod.

3. DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 March 2008 a final dividend of $17,844,000 was paid (31 March 2007: $9,893,000).
No interim dividend was paid during the year.

4, REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated net profit of the consolidated entity for the year ended 31 March 2008 was $64,527,000 (31
March 2007: $44,609,000) after deducting income tax expense of $26,334,000 (31 March 2007 $17,868,000)

5. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that ocoutted during (he
financial year under review.

6. ENVIRONMENTATL REGULATION
The operations of the company are not subject to any particular and significant environmental regulation.
7. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Qince the end of the financial year, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt
with in the report or the consolidated accounts that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of
the consolidated eitity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in
subssquent financial perods.

8. LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The company expeats its underlying operations to operate profitably in the financial year ending 31 March 2009,
although, fluctuations in the fair value and wanslation of financial instruments resulting in nnrealised gains or
losses recoghised through the profit or loss may produce anomalous results as all financial instruments are
currently held to malurity.

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results
of operations have ot been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated enlily. .




TOYOTA FINANGE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABMN 48 002 435 181

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

. INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

DIRECTOR

SPRINGER,

Ross Page

Bachelor of Commeree;
Master of Business
Adninistiation;

CPA, FAIM, FAICD

IKOMA,
Hitosl,
BRachelor of Commerce

CONOMOS,
John Harry AO, FAIM,
FAICD

EUERS,
Colin
MBA, Banking & Finance

CHANDLER,

John

MBA

YASUDA,

Masahidé

Bachelot of Engineering &
Applied Physics

OZAKI,

Hideto

Bachelor of Commerce

SHMITH,

David Henry

FCPA

HIRANO,

Eiji

Rachelor of Economics

TICHI,
Takahiko
Bachelor of Economics

MUKAIYAMA,
Kazuhide
Bachelor of Economics

EXPERIENCE

Appointed General Manager in 1984;
Deputy Managing Director in 1989
and Managing Director in 1999 of
Toyota Finance: Australia Limited.
Ditestor, TFA (Wholesale) Pty.
Limited.

Appointed Executive Vice President
of Toyota Finance Austrulia Limited
in 2007, Director of TFA
{Wholesale) Pty. Limited; Alternate
Director of Toyola Finance New
Zealand Limited.

Chairman Emeritus of Toyota Motor
Corporation Australia Limited.

Appointed General Manager in 2004
and Vics President in 2006 of Toyola
Finance Austratia Limited.

Appointed Vice President of Toyota
Finance Australia Limdted in 2006.

CEO & President of Toyota Motor
Corporation Australia Limited;
Director of TFA (Wholesale) Pty.
Limited.

President of Toyota Financial
Services Corporation.

Director of TEA (Wholesale) Pty.
Limited.

Executive Vice President and
Director of Toyoln Financial Services
Corporation.

Managing Officer of Toyota Motor
Corporation, fapan.

Executive Vice President Toyota
Motor Corporation Australia Limited.

SPECIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

Managing Director

Execulive Director

Non-executive Director

Executive Director

Executive Director

Non-execuifve Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Alternate Director




TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 435 181

DIRECTORS* REPORT (continued)

9. INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS (continued)

_ _ SPECIAL
DIRECTOR EXPERIENCE RESPONSIBILITIES
WATANABE, Group Vice President of Tayola Allernate Direetor
[itoshi Financial Services Corporation;

Bachelor of Lconomics Director of Toyota Finance New
Zealand Limited.
OBATA, Senjor Coordinator of Toyota Finance  Alternate Director
Hironobu Australia Limited,
Bachelor of Litérature
16. COMPANY SECRETARY
COMPANY SPECIAT,
SECRETARY EXPERIENCE RESPONSIBILITIES
JOHNS, Sentor Manager— Legal & Company Sceretary
Gregory Malcolm Compliance of Toyota Finance
Bachelor of Law Australia Limited,
Bachelor of Commerce

1. SHARYE OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND THE MOST

OFFICERS

HICHLY REMUNERATED

Options over issued ordinary shares of the ullimate chief enlity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Jupan grunted
during or since the end of the financial year to any directors or the five most highly remunerated officers of the
compary and consolidated entity as part of their remuneration are as follows:

Directors
R.P. Springer, Managing Director

Options Granted

5,000

The aptions were granted under the Toyota Motor Corporation Global Incentive Plan on | August 2007.

Shares under option

lssued ordinary shares of the ultimate chief entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan under option at the

date of this report are as follows:

Date options Issue price of Number under
granted Date exercisable Expiry date shares aption
1 August 2002 1 August 2004 31 July 2008 (A) 2,000
1 August 2003 1 August 2005 31 July 2009 {A) 2,000
2 August 2004 1 August 2006 31 July2010 (A) 2,000
1 August 2005 1 Angust 2007 31 July 2011 A) 5,000
1 August 2006 { August 2008 31 July 2014 {n) 5,000
1 August 2007 1 August 2009 31 July 2015 (A) 5,000
21,000

(A) The exercise price of options is based on the price equal to 1.025 limes the closing price of Toyota Motor

Corporation common shares on the ‘Tokyo Stock Exchange as at the date the options were gtanted.

5



TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 43 002 435 181

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

12,

14.

15.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors’ maetings held during the financial petiod and the number of meetings attended by each
director are:

Board of Directors’ Meetings

Directors Number Held Number Attended
R.P. Springer 11 11
H. Ikoina 11 11
D.H. Shmith i1 10
J.H. Conomos 1 7
H. Ozaki il {
T. Okada (resigned 1 June 2007) 3 1
N. Tsurumi (resigned 24 August 2007) 5 1
T, Ljichi 11 -
C. Euers 11 10
1. Chandler 11 10
T1. Watanabe 11 2
11, Obata 11 11
K. Mukaiyama ‘ 1 7
M.Yasuda (appointed 22 June 2007) 9 5
E. Hirano (appointed 24 August 2007) 7 1

OFFICERS INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

During the financial period, the company has paid a premium of $42,341 (2007; $46,543) to insure Group
Officers of the company and its controlled entities against linbilities for cosls of eXpenses incurred by them in
defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while acling in the cupacily as Officers of the
company, other than conduct involvini a wilful breach of duty in relation to the company. Those Group Officers
consist of the directors of the company:named earlier in this feport, the company seéretaries and other officers of
the compary.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No person has applied the Court under scetion 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring
proceedings on behalf of the eompany, or fo infervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party, for
the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behall of the company with leave of the Court under
section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001

AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration a3 reyuired under seetion 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is
set oul on page 8.




TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

16. ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Secuoritics and Investments
Commission, relating to *rounding off” of amounts in the directors' reporl and financial report. Amounts in the

dircetors? report and the financial report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest
thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar,

'I'his report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Fur and on behalf of the Board

R.P. Springer
Director

¥ 5%) {21

H. Ikoma
Director

SYDNEY
27 JUNFE 2008




PRICEWATERHOUSE(OOPERS

ABN 52 780 433 757

Darling Park Tower 2
201 Sussex Street
GPO BOX 2650
SYDNEY NSW 1171
DX 77 Sydney
Australla

PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Auditor's Independence Declaration Telephone +61 2 8266 0000

As lead auditor for the audit of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and Controlled Entlties for the year

ended 31 March 2008, | declare thatto the best of my knéwledge and belief, there have béen:

4) no contraventions of the:auditor independefice requirements of the Cofporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

. b) no contravenitions of any applicable code of professional condust in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and Contralled Entities during the

Facsimile +61 2-8266 9999

period.

PK Merrett
Partner
PricewaterhouseGoopers

Uiabitity limited by a scheme -approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Sydney
27 June 2008



TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

FINANCIAL REPORT - 31 MARCH 2008

This financial report covers the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated enlity comprising, Toyota Pinance
Australia Limited, as chicf entity, and the entitics it controlicd at the end, or during the financial year,

Toyota Finance Australia Limited {‘the company’) is a company limited by shares, incorporated uand domiciled in
Australia. Its registered office and principal place of business is:

Toyota Finance Australia Limited
Level 9, 207 Pacific Mighway
ST. LEONARDS, NSW, 2065

A deseription of the nature of the entity*s principal activities is included ini the direciors’ report on page 3.
P

The financial report was authorised for issuc by the dircctors on 27 June 2008. The company has the power o amend
and reissue the finaneial report.




TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 43 002 435 181
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

Interest and similar revenue
Interest expense and similar charges

Net financing income

Other income

Bad and doubtful debts expense

Employes benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Other borrowing revenue/(costs)

Share of net profits of dssociates aocounted for using
the equity method :

Profit before income tax

Theome tax expense

Profit atiribatable to members

Note

[

10

6

Consolidated Cousolidated
2008 2007
(§'000) (&'000)

449,076 394,355
(315511 (265,455)
133,565 128,900
7,916 2,863
(10,148) (8,481)
(37,218) (32,459)
(8,976) (8,313)
(22459) (23,042)
22,956 (378)
5,225 3,389
90,861 62,477
{26,334) {17,868)
64 527 44,609

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOYOTA FINANGE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES !
ABN 48 002 435 181 i

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2008

Consolidated Cousolidated
Nate 2008 2007
{$'000) ($'000)

Assels

Cash and cash equivalents 7 11,036 6,216

Loans and advances 8 5,678,999 5,194,438

Derivalive (inancial instruments g 54,911 32,213

Investments aceounted for using the eguity method 10 42,446 39,495

Property, plant and equipment ) 11 22,144 26,347

Deferred tax asscts 12 18,988 25,555

Other assets 13 5,914 58,068 )
Total assets 5,534,458 5382.532 .
Linbilities

Due to other financial institutions 14 18,000 178,000

Bonds and commercial paper 15 4,917,156 4,374,480

Current tax liabilities - 41,944

Derivative financial instruments 9 127,603 95,399

Deferred lax liabilitdes 16 41,967 34,982

Other Habilitics 17 224872 198,653
Total liabilities 5,329,598 4,923,458
Net assets 504,860 439,074
Equity

Contributed Equity 18 120,000 120,000

Reserves {9 (861) 36 i

Retained profits 20 385,721 339,038 !
Total Equity 504,860 439,074

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompatying notes.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 435 181
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR TIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

Total equity at the beginning of the year

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operalions
Net expense recognised directly in equity’

Profif attributable to members

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as squity

holders:

Dividends provided for or paid

Total equity at the end of the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year is

attributable io:

Members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note

20

Consalidated Consolidated
3008 2007
(3'000) ($'000)
459,074 423,315
{R97) 1,043
(897) 1,043
64,527 44,609
63,630 45,652
(17.844) (9,893)
(17.844) (9,893)
504,860 459,074
63,630 45,652
63,630 45,652




TOYOTA FINANGE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
(8'000) (5'000)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash outflow from lending and other

Opermting aclivitics (538,657) (438,500)

Interest received . - 473,560 416,727

Net income taxes paid (22,066) (26,841)

Tuterest paid (2599,075) (255,285)
Net cash outflow {rom operating activities 22 (386,238) (303,899).
Cash Dows from investing activities

Dividend received from associate 1,377 789

Payments for property, plant and equipnient (6,130} {13,469)

Procueds from sale of property, plant dnd equipment 1,514 1,937
Net cash putilow from investing activities (3,239) (10,743)
C'ash flows from financing activitics

Dividends paid (17,844) (9,893)

Net proceeds from borrowings 412,161 320,857
Net cash inflow from finanecing activities 394,317 310,964
Net (decrease)/incresse in cash held 4,840 (3,678)
Cashi{overdraft) at the beginning of the year 6,216 9,894
Cash at the end of the year 22 11,056 6,210

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjuriction with the accompatiying notes

13




TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED. AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

Summary of significant accounling policies

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied 1o all the years presented, unless ptherwise stated. Separate financial
statements for the parent entity ave not presented as they would not be materially different from the consolidated
finuncial statoments.

(a) DBasis of preparation

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounling Standards Board, Urgenl Issucs Group
Interpretations and the Corporativny Aet 2001,

Compliance with IFRS

Australian Accounting Standards include Anstralian equivalents to International Finaneial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the consolidated financial statements and notes of Toyota
Finance Australia Limited comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruinents) at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Principles of consolidalion

0] Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Toyota Finance
Australia Limited (“company” of “parent entity™) as at 31 March 2008 and the resulis of all subsidiaries for the
year then ended. Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its subsidiaries together are reterred to in the financial
report as the consolidated entity.

Subyidiarics arc all those cntitics over which the consolidated entity has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the consolidated entity controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and wirealised gains on transactions between consolidated entities are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the irpairment of
the assel transferred.  Accounting policies of subsidinries have been changed where neecssary tocnsure
comsistency with the policies adopled by the consolidated entity.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

L

Swummary of significant accounting policies (continued)
() Principles of consolidation (continued}

(i) Assoeintes

Associates afe all entities over wiiich the consolidaled entity has significanit influcnce but not conirol, génerally
accompanying a sharcholding of beiween 20% and 50% of the voling rights, Investments in associates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

The consolidated entity’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
stafement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is roeognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisilion movements arc incorporated in the carrying amount of the jnvestment. Dividends receivable
from agsociates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the catrying amount
of the investment.

When tlie consolidated entity’s share of losses in its associate equals or-exceeds il§ interest, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not: recognise further losses, unless ithas incurred
obligations or made payments on hehalf of iis associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are eliminated 1o the extent of
the consolidated entity's interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have heen
changed where necessary Lo ensurg consistency with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity.

(¢) Toreign currency translation

itefns included in the financial s’tat'e:méxits_bf each of the consoliddted entities.are measured using the carrency of
the primiary economic sivironment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented i Australian dollars, which is the company’s functional and presentation
curreney.,

() Functional and presentation currency

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the wansTation of the net investment in the foreign entity
from functional to presentation currency is taken to sharcholders® cquity.

(i)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency (tansactions are translated into the fanctional currency using the exchange rates provailing at
the dates of the transactions. loteign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
iransactions and from the translation at year-end éxchange rates of monetary assels and liabilities denominated in
foreign curréicies are recognised in the income statement.

(@) TRevenue recognition

Revenue is measured al the fair value of the consideration reseived or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid.

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable

that fature economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met. Revenue is recognised
for the major business activities as follows:

(i) Term Loans .

Intorest income arising from term loans is recognised over the period of the tern loan using the effective interest
rate method.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIVITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies {conlinued)
(d) Revenue recognition (continued)
(1 Leased assets where the consolldated entity Is the lessor

Finance Leases
[ntercsl income derived from finance ledses is recognised over the period of the contract using the effective
interest rate method.

Operating Leases

Lease rentals receivable on operating leases are recognised i the income statement on a systematic basis over the
effective lense term. Income derived from operating leases is included in “lcase income™ within “interest and
similar income™,

Maintenance income is recognised on an accrual basis and included in “lease income” within “interest and
similar income™.

{¢) Yocome (ax

The incoms tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the navonal income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and fiabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements.

Deferred tax assels and liabilitics are recognised (or temporary differences al the tax rates expected to apply
when the assets ure recovered or Habilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively
enacted for each jurisdiction. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and
taxable temporary differénces to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a Hability, No defeired tax asset or
liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a
business comibination, that at the time of the transaction did not affeet cither accounting profit or taxable profit or
Juss.

Deferred lax assets are recognized. for deductible temporary difterences only if it is probable that [uture taxable
amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Tax conselidation legislation
The company and its wholly-owned Australian conirolled entity have implemented the tax consolidation
legislation.from 1 April 2003 in association with other Australian incorporated entities with common oiviiership.

As a consequence, the company is no longer subjéct to income tax and does not recognise any current tax
balances in ity own financial stalements unless the Head Entity (Tayota Motor Corporation Australia Limited) is
in default of its obligations, or a defanlt is probable, ander the tax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts
relate to taxable income incurred prior to the implementatiof of the tax consolidation regime. Deferred tax
balances ars recognised in the consolidaled financial statements in accordance with UIG 1052 Tax Consolidation
Accounting. Amounts receivable or payable under o tax funding agreement with the Hend Entity are recognised
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as 1ax-related amounts receivable and payable.

(f) Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessee
Leases in which a significant porton of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases, Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives recéived from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO'THE:EINKNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

1L

Summary of siguificant accounting policies {continued)
(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
Known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant sisk of changes in value, und for the purpose of
the cash flow statement, bank overdrafis,

(h) Investments and other financial assets

Classification

'The consolidated entity classifies its investiments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and advances, and held-to-maturity investments. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the invesunents were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments al initial
recognition and re-evaluates this designation at cach reporting date.

() Fiancial asseis-al fair value through profit or loss

‘This category consists of findngial assets at fair value througli profit or loss, representing the consolitlated entity’s
outstanding derivatives balances. Derivalives are vategorised as Gnancial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Refer to note 1{k) for details ol accounting policy.

@) Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deteriminable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the consolidated entity provides money, goods or services directly to a
debtor with no intention of selling the loans and advances. Retail and wholesale finance receivables are included
in loans and advances in the balance sheel. Refer also w note 1().

(i) Held-to-maiuvity investments
11eld-to-maturity investments ars non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detérminable payments and fixed
maturities'that the consolidated entity’s managerent has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Recognition and derecoguition

Purchases and sales of investments and other financial assets are recognised on settlement date — the date on
which the consolidated entity settles the purchase or sale of the assct, Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assels
cartied at fair value (hrough profit and loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement, Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
ihe financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the consolidated entity has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent meastivement

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investments are carriéd. at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses asising from chianges in tie fair value of the Ninancial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category arc included in the income statement in the period in which:they arise.

Fair value

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
aclive (and for unlisted securities), the consolidated entity cstublishes fair value by using valoalion elmiques,
These include reference to the fair values of recent arm’s length transactions, invelving the same instruments or
othier instruments that are substantiaily the same or discounted cash flow analysis,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Loaus and advances

(i) Term Loans
Uneamed finance income is the portion of charges written into finance receivable agreements which will be
carned in the future.

(i) Leased assels where the consolidated entity s the lessor

Finance Lenses

Finance Jeases, in which the consolidated entity i% the lessor, aré included in *loans and advances’ in the balance
sheet.

‘Uneamed finance income is the portion of charges written into finance receivable agreements which will be
earned in the future.

Operafing Leases

Operating leases, in which the consolidated entity is the lessor, are included in foans and advances. The
substance of the transaction is that of a loan to a customer, hence it§ disclosure in ‘loans and advances’, rather
than ‘fixed assets’.

Asscts held under operating leases are depreciated, on a systematic basis; over the term of the lease to its
estimated residual value,

(itf) Builment stock
The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to motor dealers under which vehicles
are owned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’” premises as bailment stock.

Whilst the legal form of the transactions is that the vehicles are owned by the consolidated entity. the substance
of the transactions is that of loans to the dealers. Accordingly the balances are disclosed as part of ‘loans and
advances’ in the balance sheet.

) Provision for impairment of loans and advances

Collectibility of Toans and advances is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Loans and advances which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. A provision for impairment of loans and advances is established when there is
objective evidence that the consolidated entity expect not to be able to collect all amounts due according to the
ariginal terms of the contract, The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying value
and the amount determined by management as o be likely of colleetion. The movement in the provision is
recognised in the income statemend.

(I Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into md are
subsequenily remeasured (0 their Tuir value al each reporting date. The derivatives have nol been designated as
hedging ingiuments, conseqiently, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised imimediately in the
income statemetit, This may, 1o the extent that they are not offset by the translation of the hedged item, introduce
volatility in the consolidated entity’s income statement and produce anomalous results as all derivatives are
currently held to maturily.

Nef gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives have been included in either ‘interest
expense and similar charges’ or “olher borrowing costs’. Net fair value gains and losses on derivalives at fair
value through profit or loss have been included in tinterest expense and similar charges® to the cxtent that they
refleet the consolidated entity's acerual based cost of funds and hence form a component of the finance margin.
The balance of net fair value gains and losses on derivatives at fair value through profit or loss are included in
*other borrowing costs’.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND GONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

1

Summary of significant accoun ting policies (continued)
() Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are estimated for recognition and measureinent or for disclosure
purposes. The fair vatlue of financial instrinents traded in active markets {such as publicly traded derivatives
and available for sale securities) is based on guoted market prices at the balance sheel date. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the compaiy is the bid price. The appropriate quoted market price for
[inancial liabilitics is the ask price.

“T'he fait value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using discounted cash flow valuation techniques. In particular, the fair value of
interest rate swaps and cross Gurency swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated foture cash flows
and the fair value of foreign sxchange contracts is determined using the forward exchange market rates at the
balance sheet dale.

(m) Property, plant and equipment

Propeity, plant’ and equipmeit is stated at historical cost less depréeiation. Historical - cost includes expendilire
(hat is dircctly atiributable to the acquisition of the itoms.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apptopriate,
only when it is probable that foture economic benefits associated with the item will flow. to the consolidated
entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calcutated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost,
aet of their residual values, over their eslimated useful lives, as follows:

Asget Class Method Useful Life
Plant and equipment Straight-line 3-5 years
Motor Vehicles Straight-line 3 years

Leasehold improvements
Leaschold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line Basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated vseful life of the improvement ta the consolidated entity, whichever is the shorter.

Computer software develogment

Capitalised computer software development is recognised when it is probable that the project (i) will be
completed considering its commercial and technical feasibility, (if) will contribute to future period financial
benefits through revenue generation andfor cost reductions; and (iii) its costs can be measured reliably. The
expendityre capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services and direct
labour.- Capitalised computer software development is amortised. from the point at which the asset is ready for
s on a straight-fine basis over its useful life, which varies from 3 to 4 years.

"The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An assct's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the agset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount {note 1{n}).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
i the income stalement. ;
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

1.

Summary of significant accounting policics (contiilued)
(n) Tmpairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to-amortisation and are tested anmially for impairment or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate objective evidence of impairment. Assets that ars
subject to anorlisation are reviewed for impairmient whencver events or changes in circumstances indicate that
(he carrying amiount may not be recoverable. An impairment. loss is recognised fof the amount by which the
asset’s catrying amount exceeds ifs recoverable amount. ' The recoverable amount is the-higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to resell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impainment, assets are grouped at the
[owest levels for which there aré separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
iuflows from other asset groups (cash generating units).

{0) Bouds and commercial paper

Bonds and commercial paper are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurrsd. Bonds and
commercial paper are subsequently measured al amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (pet of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the bonds
or commercial paper using the elTective interest method. )

{(p) Financial instrument transaction costs
Pinaticial instrument transaction costs are incinded in the carrying amounts.
{q) Employee benefits

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave end sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including annual leave sxpected fo be setiled within 12 months of the reporting
date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when (he liability is settled. Linbilities for non-accumulating sick leave are
recognised when the leave is taken and ineasured at rates paid or payable.

(i)  Long serviee leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provigion for employee benefits and. measured as the
present value of expected future payments (o be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expecled future payments are discounted using markat yields at the reporling
date on national government bonds with torms to maturity and currency thal match, as closcly as possible, the
estimated future cash flows.

(it))  Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the consulidated entity are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death from the
consolidated entity's superannuation plan. The consolidated cntily has a defincd contribulion plan. The defined
contribution plan receives fixed contributions from the consolidated entity and the consolidated entity’s legal and
constructive obligatioti is limited to thess contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund, or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

(r) Dividends

Pravision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on ar before the end of the year but not distributed at
balance date.
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TOYOTA FINANCE. AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

11

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Segment reporting

A business ssgment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different to those of other business segments, A geographical segment is a group of
assets and operations engaged in-providing products or services within a particular economic cnvironment and is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments,

()  Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is
not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or paysble to, the taxation authorily is included with other receivables or payables.in the
balaiice sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis, The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activitics which are recoverable (rom, or payable to the taxation autharity, are presented as operating
cash flow.

(n)  Critical acconnting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial report requires the making of estimations and assumptions that affect the
recognised amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent labililies. The
estimates and associted assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors- [hat are
helieved to bt reasonable under the. circumstances, the resilts of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and Habilities ihiat are not readily apparent from other sonrces. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

) Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission, relating to the “rounding off" of amounts in the financial report, Amounts in the financial report
have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the
nearest dollar,

(w)  New and revised accounting standardy ard interprefations

(i) Adoption of new accounting standards
Beginning April 1, 2007, the company has adopted AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
AASB 2005-10 Amendments 1o Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114,
AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB I, AASE 4, AASR 1023 & AASE 1038]. Application of the

standards do not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The disclosures
required by these standards are reflected in the financial statements ending 31 March 2008.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

i

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(W)
i)

New and vevised accounting standards and interpretations {continued)
New and revised accounting standards effeciive in 2009

Certain new or revised standards and interprétationss have been. published that are not mandatory for the

31 March 2008 financial year, The company’s assessment of the impact of the relevant new standards and
interpretations is set out below:

s  AASB 8 Operaling Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian decounting Standards
arising from AASB 8

AASB 8§ and AASB 2007-3 are effective for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1
January 2009. AASB 8 will result in a signifiennt change in the approach to segment reporting, as it
requires adoption of a “management approach” to reporting on financial performance. The
inforination being reported will be based on. what the key decision makers nse internally for evaluating
segment performance and deciding how to allodate resources fo operating segments, "The-company
will adopt AASB 8 fromi the financial year beginning 1 April 2009. The adoption of this standard will
not materially impact the financial statomenls.

» Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8 Amendments o
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 1 01

Revised AASB 101 is upplicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2009. It
requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and makes changes (o the statement
of changes in equity, but will not affect any of the amounts recognized in the financial statements. If
the company has made a prior period adjustment or has reclassified items in the financial statements, it
will need to disclose a third balance sheet (statement of finsincial position), this one being as at the
beginning. of the comparative period. The company will adopt. the revised AASB 101 from the
Ginancial year beginning 1 April 2009.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

Average Average
Balance . Interest Rate
{$'000) ($'000) (%)

2. Tnterest and gimilar revenue and interest expense and similay charges

The following tables show the average balance of each of the major categories of interest-bearing assels and
Tiabilities, the amounts of interest revenug or expense and the average interest rate. Monthly averages have been
predominantly used, as they arc reprosentative of the consolidated entity's operations during the period.

Interest and similar revenue - 31 Muarch 2008

Deposits with other financial institations- 68,736 4,059 5.9%
Leage income 776,558 67,055 3.6%
Other loans and advances 4,582,725 402,445 &.8%
Total inlcrest revenue 473,559

Fee and commission inconie 33,202

Fee and comniission expenss (57,685)

Total interest and similar revenue 449 076

Interest and similar revenue - 31 March 2007

Deposits with other financial institutions 19,419 1,101 S$0%
Lease intome 714,524 57719 8.1%
Other 1oans and advancés 4,258,773 _ 357,908 8.4%
Total interest revenue 416,728
Tee and commission incotmne 30,177
Fee nnd commission expense 352,5,50)
Total interest and similar revenue 194,355

Interest expense and siniilar charges - 31 March 2008

Borrowings from banks and financial institutions 69,920 4,246 6.1%
Bonds, notes, cammercial papet and others 4,766,220 307,178 6.4%
Transaction costs 4,087

115,311

Tuterest expense and similar charges - 31 March 2007

Borrowings from banks and financial ingtitutions 93,483 5,456 5.8%
Bonds, notes, commercial paper and others 4,356,393 256,696 5.9%
"['ransaction costs 3,303

763,453
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

3. Other Income

Net gain on disposal of leased and fixed assets
Other

4, Expenses
Profit before income tax ncludes the following specific expenses:

Depreciation
Buildings - leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

Total depreciation

Amortisation
Computer development costs

Total Amortisation

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Net loss on disposal of leased and tixed assets
Rental expense relating to operating leases

Fuir value loss/(gain) on derivative financial instruments af fair value
through profit or loss, included in:

Interest expense and similar charges

Other borrowing Costs

Total fair valne loss/(gain) on derivative. financial instruments at faic value
through profit or loss recognised in the income statement

Other borrowing (revenuel/eosts

Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss

Net (gain)/loss on translation of foreign currency bonds, notes and
commercial paper

Net other borrowing (revenue)/costs

Consolidated Cousolidated
2008 2007
{3°000) (5'000)
3,643 -
4,273 2,863
7916 2,363
326 311
1457 1,308
455 607
2,238 2,226
6,738 6,089
6,738 6,089
8,976 8,315
- 2,375
3,504 3421
499714 52,993
80,964 106,202,
130,935 159,195
80,964 106,202
(103,920) (105,824)
(22,956) 378
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TOYOTA FINANGCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

5.

Tmpairment of loans and advances

{i) Praovision for impairment of loans and advances

Opening balance
Bad debts written off
Increage in provision

Closing balance

(ii) Bad and doubtful debts expense

b)

Recovery of bad debts written off
Increase in provision

Total bad and doubiful debis expense

Income tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Under/(over) provision in prior year
Income lax cxpense atiributable (o continuing operations

Deferred income tax expense included in income fax expense comprises:
(Increase)decrease in deferred tax assels (note 12)

(Decrease)increase in deferred tax liabilities (note 16)

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable:

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense
Prima facie tax payable @@ 30%

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in caloulating taxable
mecome:

Share of net profit of associate

Dividends received from associate

Sundry items

Under/(ovor) provision in.prior years
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations
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Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
($'000) $'000)
55,559 54,835
(15,124) (10,858)
12,812 11,582
53,247 55,559
{2,664) (3,101)
12,812 11,582
10,148 8,481
13,995 20,651
13,552 (2,786)
{1,213) 3
26,334 17,868
6,567 {1,087)
6,985 (1,699)
13,552 {2,780)
90,861 62,477
21,258 18,743
(1,567) {1,017}
413 237
1,443 {98)
27,547 17,865
{1,213) 3
26,334 17,868
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

0. Income tax expense {continued)
{¢) Tax consolidation legislation

The company and its wholly-owried Australian controlled entity (the: *consolidated entity’) have implemented the
tax consolidation legislation froin 1 Apiil 2003 in association with offier Australian incorporated entitios with 4
common ownership. The accounting policy in relation to this Tegistation is sct out in note 1(e).

On adoption of the tax consolidation legisfation, the entitizs in the tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing
agreement which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability of the consolidated entily in
the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited.

The consolidated entity has also entered into a tax funding agreement wnder which the consolidated entity fully
compensates the head entity for any current tax payable assumed and is compensaled by the head entity for any
cusrent tax receivable, The funding amounts are determined by reference to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated entity™s financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice from
the head entity, whicli is issued ag soon 4% practicable after the end of cach financial year. The hdad entity may
also require payment of interimy funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax instalments,

Consolidated Cuonsolidated
2008 2007
($'000) ($'000)
7. Cash and cash equivalenfs

Cash on hand 2 2
Cash at bank 10,054 3214
Deposits at call 1,000 3,000
11,056 6,216

{a) Cash on hand
“These are non-interest bearing,

{h) Cash at hank
Cash at bank balances are bearing floating interest rates between 5.25% and 6:25%
(31 March 2007 between 4.50% and 5.25%),
These cash at bank deposits reflect an at call facility.

(c) Deposits at call
Money market deposits are bearing floating interest rates between 6.20% and 7.25%
(31 March 2007: betwaen 5.45% and 6.30%).
This money market deposit refleet an at call facility.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

Consolidated Consolidatéd

2008 2007
($'000) ($*000)
8. Loaus and advances

Bailment stock 1,043,156 971,083

Motor vehicles under operating lease 335,559 356,088

Term Loans 4,465,190 4,072,042

Finance Leases 657,073 538,380

Gross loans and advances - ‘ 6,500,978 5,937,593

Accumulated depreciation on motor vehicles

under operating lease {83,301) (84410)

Unearned income {685,431) (603,186)

Net loans and advances (net of unearned income) 5,732,246 5,249,997

Provision for impairment of loans and advances (53,247) {55,559)

Net loans and advances 5,678,999 5,194,438

Maturity analysis

{net of unearmed income) ‘

Ateall 1,103,495 1,031,683

Mot longer than 3 months 377,535 341,505

Longer than 3 months and not fonger than 12 mouoths 1,032,632 959,283

Longer than | year not longer than 5 years 3,197,042 2,902,549

Longer thani 5 years 21,542 . 14,977
5,732,245 5,249,997

9. Derivative financial instruments

Assets

Interest rate swap contracts 50.000 31,858

Cross currency swap contracts - 353

Forward forcign exchange contracls 4,91 -

Total derivative financial instrument assets - held at fair value , 54,911 032,213

Liabilities

Inlerest rate swap contracts 30,675 26,739

Cross currency swap contracts 93,808 57,883

Forward foréign exchange contracls 3,120 10,777

Total derivative financial instrument liabilities - held at fair value 127,603 95,399
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TOYOTA FINANGE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

10. Tnvestments in associates

@)

®

©

G

-

Country of Ownership
Namc of entity incorporation Consulidated interest
2008 2007 2008 2007
(5'000) ($'000) % %
Movenient in carrying amount
Unlisted
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited - New-Zealand
Carrying amount al the beginning of the [inancial
year 39,495 35,852 45.45 45.45
Share of profits after income tax 5,225 3,389
Dividends reccived (1,377) (739)
Net exchange differences on franslation of
foreign associate entity (897) 1,043
Carrying amoutt at the end of the financial year 42 446 39,495

The principal activities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:
- to finance motor vehicle acquisitions in the form of leasing, term purchase, consumer and commercial loans;
- 1o provide bailment facilities and commercial loans to Toyota dealers;
- the marketing of vehicle and finance related insurance products;
- the provision of refail finance and related prodiscts for pleasure boats; and
- the provision unsecured personal loans,

lavesimentsin associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting and
are carried at cost by the parent entity.

Share of associates' profits

Profit before income tax 5,707 5,022
Income tax expense (482) (1,633)
Profit after income: tax 5,225 3,380

Summarised financial information of assoeiafes
Group's share of:
Assets Liabilities.  Revenucs Profit
($'000) (54000) ($000) ($'000)

2008
Toyola Financs New Zealand Limiled 285,122 241,996 48,580 5,225
2007
Toyola Finance New Zealand Limited 269,114 228,236 41,299 3,380

P
P ey

Consolidated
2008 2007
(8'000) {$'000)
Share of associates expenditure commitments
1.case commilments 768 726
s pmemee————
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

11. Property, plant and equipment

Pepreciation/ Written
Cost Amwpriisation Down Value
2008 2008 2008
(81000 ($'000) {31000)
T.easchold improvements 2,513 1,389 1,124
Plant and equipment 12,598 10,036 2,542
Motor vehicles 1,126 270 836
Computer software development i ’ 48,261 30,639 17,622
04,498 42,354 32,144
Deprecintion/ Wrilien
Cost Amorlisation Dawn Value
2007 2007 2007
(S'000) ($'0060) {3000)
Leaschold impravemenls 2484 1,062 1,422
Plant and cquipiment 11,876 8,629 3,247
Mulor vehicles 3,278 410 2,368
Computer soflware development 42,011 23,901 19,010
60,548 34,002 26,347
Computer
Leaselinld Plant and softivare
Improvemerits cquipment Motor vehicles tevelopment
Consalidated ($'000) (5'000) (5'000) ($'000)
Carrying amount al Lst April, 1,422 3,247 2,868 19,010
Additions 28 752 - 5,350
Disposals - - (1,557) -
Depreciation / mnortisation expense (pote 4) - (326) (1 457) (453) (6,738)
Carrying amount at 3 st March 1,124 2,542 836 17,622
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

Cousolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
($'000) ($'000)
12. Deferred tax assels
The balance comprises tempaorary differences attributable to:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Provision for impaicment of loans and advances - 15,974 16,668
Employee entitlements 1,128 1,055
Financial instruments (5,865) 793
Deferied origination fees 4,979 4,373
Sundty items 2,772 2,660
18,988 25,553
Movements:
Opening balance at 1 April 25,555 24,468
Credited/(charged) to the income statement {(note 6) - {6,567) 1,087
Closing balance at 31 March 18,988 25,555
13. Other assets
Other debtors ard prepayments 5,607 56,777
Acerued interest receivable - 1
Prepaid reinsurance 307 1,290
5,914 58,068
14. Due to other financinl institutions
Banks and other financial institutions 18,000 178,000
18,000 173,000
Maturity analysis
Atcall 18,000 178,000
18,000 178,000
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 435181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

15. Bonds and commercial paper

16

17.

Commercial paper
Euro Commercial Paper
Medium tesm notes

Maturity analysis

Not longer than 3 months

Longer than 3 tnonths and not longer than 12 months
Longer than | year not longer than § years

Longer than 5 years

Deferred tax labilities
The balance comprises temporary differences atiributable to:

Antonnts recognised i profit or loss

Defetred fees and commissions

Investren(s accounted for using the equity method
Assets financed under lease

Sundry items

Movemenis:
Opening balince al 1 April

“redited 1o the income statement (note 6)
Closing balance at 31 March

Other liabilities

Unearned warranty revenue
Employee entitlements

Accrued interest payable

Amounts payable o related entities
Accounts payible & accrued expenses
Othet

Number of employees at period end.
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Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
($'000) ($'000)
370,709 263,374
293,794 233,674
4,252,653 3,877,432
TR I56 ,314,480
710,655 589,807
852,280 1,185,583
3332319 2,574,354
21,902 24,736
4,017,156 4,374 A80
27,645 22,921
3,347 3,096
11,053 8,777
(78) 188
41,967 34,982
34,982 36,681
6,985 (1,699)
41,967 34,982
2,259 4,277
3,761 3,516
83,569 75,047
89,347 78,386
20,204 22,172
23,732 15,255
204,812 198,653
378 362




TOYOTAFINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

18.

(a)

(a)

Consolidated Consolidated

2008 2007
($'000) {5'000)
Contributed equity
Ordinary shares fully paid 120,000 120,000
Ordinary shares

At 31 March 2008 there were 120,000,000 ordinary.shares fully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present af a teeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one
vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote,

. Reserves

Foreign currency transiation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 36 {1,007)
Net exchange differences on translation of forcign associate entity (897) 1,043
Balance at the end of the financial year (861) 36

Foreign currency transiotion reserve

Exchange differences arising on wranslation of the foreign entity accounted for using the equily method are taken to
the foreign currency translation reserve, as described in note 1(¢). The reserve is recognised in profit and loss
when the net investment is disposed of.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED-AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2008

Congolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
. (5'000) ($10080)
20. Retained profits

Reliined profits at the beginning of the financial year 339,038 304,322
Profit attributable to members 64,527 44,609
Total available for appropriation to members 403,565 348,931
Dividends provided for or paid ' ‘ (17,844) (9,893)
Retained profifs at the end of the financial period 385,721 339,038
Dividends
Final dividend of 14.870 cents (31 March 2007 +8.244 cents) per filly paid
share paid during the firiancial year.
Fully franked based on tax paid at @ 30% 17,844 9,893
Total dividends provided for or paid 17,844 9,893

Undér the income (x consolidation regime, the franking account balance of the company as at | April 2003 was
permancntly transferred to the Head Eatily of the consolidated tax group, The comipany ceases to have a franking

acoount during the time it remains a member of the consolidated group.

The income tax consolidation aules do permit the cotnpany to pay  fratiked dividend to its shareholder with the Head
Entity’s franking account bearing a reduction for the franking accounts attached to the dividend. Dividends pald during

the periods ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007 were fully franked.

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
. . ® ®
21. Auditors' remuneration

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided
by the auditor of the parenl entity, it related practices and non-related audit
firms:
PricewaterhouseCoopers - Australian firi
Audit or review of the financial reposts of the entily 284,596 252,174
Otheraudit-related work 108,249 120,703
Other assurance services - 2,610
Total audit and other assurance services 392,845 375,487
Taxation 20,067 46,521
Total remuneration 412,912 422,008
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers Anstralian firm {incheding
wverseas PricewaterhouseCoopers firms) 4
Other assurance services 60,633 (9,445
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2008

Consaliflated Consolidated
2008 ‘ 20,07
{3"000) ($'000)
22. Cash flow information
Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled lo the related
items in the balance sheet as follows:

Cash on hand . - 2 2
Cash at bank (bank overdraft) 10,054 3,214
Deposits/(borrowings) - at call 1,000 3,000

11,056 6,216

Reconciliation of net eash flows rom
operating activities to operating profit
after income tax

Operating profit after income tax 64,527 44,609
Share of profits of associates (5,225) (3,389)
Depreciation and amortisation 8,976 8,315
Amortisation - Upfront receipts (1,637 (1,235)
Amortisation - prepaid exponse 18,004 10,595
Net loss on sale of non-current assets (3,643) 615
(Decrease)/inorsase in provision for doubtinl debts (2,312) 724
Increase/ (decrease) in deferred tax liability 6,985 (1,699)
(Decrease)/increase in current tax payable (41,944) 5,046
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax asset 6,567 {1,087)
(Increase) in receivables and loans (482,249) (382,082)
(Decrease)/increase in current liabilities (6,441) 18,500
Decrease / (Increase) in current assels 52,154 . 2811
(386,238) (303,899)

23, Lease commitnents

Operating leases
Aggregate amount contracted but not provided for in the accounts
are a8 follows:

- Premises 18,802 19,736
Due within one year 2,988 2,700
Due within one to five years 11,908 10,906
Due over five years 3,906 6,130

18,502 19,736

The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to nine vears. The
Jeases have varying terms, cscalations clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated, .
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2008

24,  Capital commitments

The consolidated cntity has capital commitments of $408,000 payable within one year as at 31 March 2008.
(31 March 2007: $296,000).

25,  Credit commitments

The consolidated entily has outstanding comrilments to cxtend credit in the normal course of business which are
not reflected in the financial report,

Outstanding credit commitments provided to customers currently undrawn are as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated

2008 2007

{$*000) {$°000)
Term loaiis 28,828 20,965
Bailment stock 230,531 296,002
Fleet facilitios 310,172 104,483
Total 569,531 621,450

26. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities; and results of the following subsidiaries 1 accordance with
the accounting policy described innote 1(b):

Country of Class of

Name of entity incorporation shares Chwriership interest
_ 2008 2007
% %
TFA (Wholesale) Pry, Limited* Australia Ordinary 100 100

*Investment value of $2 has been rounded to nil.

This subsidiary has been granted relief from the necessity to prepare financial reports in accardance with Class Order 98/1418
issued hy the Australian Sceuritics and luvestment Commmission. For further information refer to note 32.

The proportion of the awnership interest is equal to the propartion ufv'oﬁng powér held.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

27. Related party transactions

(n) Parent entities

‘I'he ultimate Australian parent entity is Toyota Finatice Anstralia Limited, a wholly owneéd subsidiary of Toyota
Financial Services Corporation, whichis a wholly-owned subsidiury of (he ultinate parent entily; Toyota Motor

Corporation incorporated in Japan.

(b) Subsidiaries
Iterests in subsidiaries are set out in note 26.

() Xey managemenl personnel
Key manugemeni personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Share-based payments
Termination benefits

{d) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Dividend revenne
Associates

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
(65} (%)
3,392,108 2,407,118
59,038 57,026
- 192,656
351,146 7,656,800
Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
($'000) ($'000)
1,377 789

(¢) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods nnd services

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in refation w transactions with related parties:

Amupunts receivabie from

Related entities 27,100 69,879
Amounts payable to
Related entities 73,630 65,628

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and o expense has been

recognised in respect of bad and doubitful debts due trom related parties.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND GONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

27.

®

28.

Consolidated Cousolidated
2008 2007
%) 5
Related party transactions (continued)
Loans from related entities
Loans from related entitics
Beginning of the year 12,758 10,181
Loans advanced 2,939 2,664
T.oan repaymenits received - 87
End of year 15,697 12,758

No provisions for doubtful debis have been raised in refation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been

recognised in respect of bad and doubtful debts due from related parties.

Finaneinl Risk Management

The consolidated entity’s activities expose ittoa

variety of financial risks: markel risk (including surrency risk,

interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and Tiquidity risk. The consolidated enitity’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial matkets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

financial performance of the consolidated entity. The consolidated

entity does not enter into or trade financial

instruments, including derivative financial insttuments, for speculative purposcs. Derivative financial ingtruments

are used lo manage the consolidated entity’s exposure 1o currency risk and interest rate risk.

Risk management is carried oul by various committees and departments based on charters or policies approved by

senior management, These include:

Pricing Commiitee

The Pricing Committee meets morithly to aclively asstss new buginess marging in donhection with volume and

interest rate requiremerits, and a changing interest fate and competitor environment.

Asset and Liabifity Commitice
An Asset and Liability Conunitlee,

convened monthly, to prouctively and collaboratively manage and monitor the

interest rate and liguidity risks of the consolidated entity. “The consolidated entity's Treasury department identifies,

evaluates and hedges financial risks.

The treasury department implements the congolidated entity’s policies to

manage the consolidated entity's foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk with financial intermediaries,

and liquidity risk.

Credit Risk Commitiee
The Credil Risk Commiltee is fesponsible for identifying,

evalualing and managing the censolidated entity’s credit

risk. The role of Credit Risk Commitieé is to ensure that the consolidated entity’s business liag a sound risk
strategy consistent with corporate goals, which is applied by compstent sales pedple using appropriately

documented, robust policy and procedures.

Internal Audit
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review

Senior management and the consolidated entity’s

of risk management and the control environment.

sharcholder, where applicable, provide writien principles for

overall visk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, vse of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative finansial instraments, and investment of

excess liquidity.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

28, Finaneial Risk Management (continued)
(a) MMavket risk

(@) Foreign exchange risk
The consolidated entity operales in iiternational capital markets to obtain debt funding to-support its caming
assets, Transactions may be denominated in foreign currencies, exposing the consolidated cntity to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures.

Foreign exchange risk arises from. recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currency that is not the entity’s
Functional currency and net investments in foreign operations. The risk is measured using debt maturity analysis.

Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk against their
functional corrency. The consolidated enlity is required to hedge 100% of il foreign exchange risk at the time of
debt issuances. Derivative fnancial ingtruments-are entered inta by the consolidated entity to hedge its exposure to
foreign currency risk, including: '

s  TForward foréign exchange contracls 1o hedge the foreign currency risk srising on the issue of commercial
paper in foreign currericies; and

e Cross currency swaps Lo manage (he foreign currency and interest rilc risk associated with forcign currency
denominated medium lerm notes.

‘The consolidated entity’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date is immaterial.

(ii) Cash fow and fair value interest rate risk
Cash flow interes! rate risk is the risk that the futare cash flows of a financial instrusienit will fluctuate because of
changes in markel inlerest rates, Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will
fluctuate hecause of changes in market initorest rates. The consolidated entity is exposed to the effects of
fluctuations in. the prevailing levels of market initerest rates as it borrows and lends funds at both floating and fixed
rates. Derivatve firiancial instruments areentared into by the consolidated entity 10 manage its exposure to cash
flow iiterest rate risk, including:

e Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps fo manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity’s
earning assets, Such interest rate swaps lave the sconomic effect of converting loans and advances from
fixed rates fo floaling rates.

s lixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity’s
functional currency denominated fixed rate medium term notes. Such interest rate swaps have the economic
effect of converting borrowings from fixed rales o Hoaling rates; and

s Cross curtency swaps to manage the foreign cutrency and interest rate rigk assotiated with foreign currency
denominated medium term notes.  Such cross curtehey swaps have the economic effect of converting
borrowings from foreign denominated fixed rates to functional ¢urrency floating rates.

Under the interest rale swaps, the consolidated entity agroes with other parties to exchange, at specified ntervals
(mainly quarterly), ths difference between fixed contract rates, and floating rate interest amonnts caloulated by 3
reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the cross currency swaps, the consolidated entity agrees ,
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign currency principal and fixed rate interest amounts,
and functional currency principal and floating rate interest amounds calculated with roference to the agreed
functional currency principal amount.

The consolidated entity’s policy is to maintain 100% of its debt exposure in functional currency at floating tate
(generully quarterly BBSW), using interesl rale Swaps OT CrOSS CUITCCy SWaps to achicve this when necessary.
The consolidated entity’s policy is to maintain hetween 20% and 50% of its loans and advances funded at floating
rate {generally quatterly BBSW), using interest rate swaps to.achieve tlifs when necessary.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

28. Financial Risk Maagement (continned)
{(n) Muarket risk: (cantinued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

The foHowing able details the consolidated entity's exposure to interest rale risk as at the reporting date.

iy,

(ol OISO

Weighted Variable Fixed Interest Rate Non Total
31 March 2008 Average Interest 1.es8 than 1tos Interest
Tnterest Rate 1 year years Bearing
Rate % (3'000)_ ($'000) (5000 ($'000) ($'000)
Financial Assets
Cash-and liquid asssts 5.9% 11,056 - - - 11,056,
Loans and advarices 8.5%] 1,103,495 1,657,857 | 3,739,626 - 6,500,978
Total financial assets 1,114,551 1,657,857 | 3,739,026 -1 6,512,034
Financial Liagbilities
Other liabilities - - - - 224,111 221,111
Banks & other financial
institutions 74% - 18,000 - - 18,000
Commercial paper T 4% 664,503 - - - 664,503
Medium tetra notes 7.5% 4,999 898433 | 3,349,221 - 4,252,653
Employce entitiements - - - - 3,761 3,761
[nterest rate swaps - 1,371,883 335,298 | (1,707,181) - -
Total financial liabilities 2,041,385 1,251,731 1,642,040 224 872 5,160,028
Net fiinneinl asgets {926,834) 406,126 | 2,097,586 (224,.872)] 1,352,006
Weighted Variable Fixed Intérest Rite Non Total
31 March 2007 Average Interest Less than fto5 Interest
Interest Rate i year years Bearing
Rate % ($'000) ($'000) ($000) {§'000) {5'000)
Yinancial Assets
Cash and liquid assets 5.7% 6,216 - - - 6,216
Loans and advances 8.0% 1,031,683 1,524,981 3,380,929 - 5,937,593
Total financial assets 1,037,899 1,524,981 3,380,020 - 5,943,800
Financial Liabilitics
Other Libilitics - - - - 195,137 195,137
Batiks & other financial
institutions 6.3% - 178,000 - - 178,000
Commercial paper 6.4% 497.048 - - - 497,048
Medium term notes 64% 92,759 1,185,583 2,599,090 - 3,877,432
Employes entitlements - - - - 3,516 3,516
Intérost rate swaps - 835,196 111,119 {946,315) - -
Tatal financial liabilities 1,425.003 14747302 1 1,652,775 198,653 4,751,133
Net financial agsets (387,10} 50,279 1,728,154 (198,633) 1,192,676
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
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28. Financial Risk Management (continned)
(n) Market risk {continued)
(1) Value atrisk

'I'he consolidated entity applies a “value at risk’ methodology (VAR) to its poatfolio, to estimate the market risk of

positions held and the maximum losses expected, based npon a number of assumptions for various changes in -

market conditions. The consolidated entity’s shateholder sets limits'on the value of risk that may be accepted.

VAR is a statistically based estimale of the potential losses on the current portfolio from adverse market
movements. Tt expresses the ‘maximum’ amount the consolidated entity may lose, but onlyto a certain level of
confidence (95%). The VAR model assumes a certain ‘holding period’ untilpositions can be closed (30 days). It
also assumes that market moves ocoutring over this holding period will follow a similar pattern to those that have
occurred over a 1 year (365 day) period in the past. The consolidated entity’s assessment of past movements is
based on daily market data for the past 1 year, The consolidated enlily applies these historical changes in rales

dircely to its currenl positions —a deterministic method called parametric VAR,

The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant matket
movements.

The followirg table surmiarises the consolidated enlity’s viluc-al risk aga percentage of equity.

172 months to 31 March 20038 12 months to 31 March 2007
Average High Low Averags High Low
Tnicrest rate risk 2,70 3.60 2406 171 222 1.10
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28. Financial Rigk Management (continued)

(b} Credit risk

0

The consolidatéd entity takes oit exposure Lo credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial
loss for e consolidated cntity by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principelly in lending
activitics that lead to loans and advances, and Treasury funding activities such as cash and cash equivalenis,
deposits with banks and financial institutions and derivative financial instruments, '

Loans and advances

The consolidated enlily loans and advances portfolio is exposed to two primary segments: retail and wholesale,

Retail

‘I'he retail portfolio is the largest segment. It coniptises a range of loans and advances from. individual consumers
arid small business; through to fleet business consisting of medium to large commereial clents and governinent
bodies.

Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of eredit
scoting and mamal underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfolio diversification both
demographically and geographically. Credit risk arising from fleet clients is mandged by imposition and review (at
a thinimum annually) of credit limits to ensure flect clents have the capacily to settle financial commitments.
Collateral i also tsed to sceurs funds advanced. The principle collateral types are:

] The consolidated -enlity, in the case of term purchase and finance lzase products, retain litle of (he leased

vehicle mntil final settlement under the terms of the agreement;
e  Charges over vehicles or real estate property in the case of loan products.

Repossessed vehicles are sold using various channels as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness.

Wholesale

The wholesale portfolio represents revolving credit limit facilities for motor vehicle dealerships to fund new and
used vehicle stock. It also represents loans to approved motor vehicle dealerships to finance. the dealership
premises and working capital lines of credit. The wholesale porifolio has & higher coneentration of credit risk, than
does the retail portfolio, due to the naturc of these fucilitics and its concentration in the motor vehicle dealership
industry, although the risk is spread seross market jocations throughout Australia.

The ¢redit risk within this portfolio is managed through the imposition and. review (at a minimun annually) of
credit limits to ensure dealerships have The capacity to séttle financial commitments. Conduct regular inspections
of dealership vehicle stock. Collateral for funds advanced. The principle collateral types are:

s  Bailment facilities for new vehicle stock;

¢  Charpes over business assels such as premises or used vehicle stock.

“The concentration of credil risk in relation to these two segments is reflected in the note 29 segment reporting.
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28. Finaicial Risk Management (continued)
(b) Credit risk (conlinued)

Loans and advances are analysed below:

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
(51000) ($'000)

Past due loans and advances:

- 1-14 Days 632,880 665,724

- 15-30 Days 345,310 408,168

~31-60 Days 54,977 57,300

- 61-90 Days 13,056 17,169

- 90+ Days 23,763 38,100
Total 1,069,986 1,187,061
Past due loans and advances include unitopaired and impaired loang and advances. Below is the value of
impaired loans and advances included in past due loans and advances.
Impaired loans and advances 73,402 72,742
Fair value of collateral related o impaired loans 24,581 30,188

(i) Treasury fonding activities

The consolidated cntity’s Treasury manage credil risk through the use of extemal rating such as Standard and
Poor’s rating or equivalents, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterparty financial condition and master

neiting agreements ars in place with all derivative counterparties.

The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entily’s money market deposits and derivatives relating

to treasury funding activities, hased on the Stendard & Poor's rating,

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
Rating % %
AAA 34 25
AA! 4 10
AA 21 46
AA- 27 3
At 6 5
A~ 4 -
A 4 11
100 100

The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date, without taking irito account collateral obtained, is the

carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts or impairment, of each financial asset, including

derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet.
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28. Finaneial Risk Management (continued)
(c) Liquidity visk

Liquidity risk {s the risk that the consolidaicd entity is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities when they fall due and fo replace funds wheit they are withdrawn. The consequence may be
failure to meet obligations to repay creditors and fulfil comtnitmeits to lend. The consolidated entity, in the normal
course of business, requires substantial funding to support the level of its earning assets and working capilal
requirements, consequently is exposed to liquidity risk.

The liquidity management process c.arr‘i'cd oput by Treasury includes:

¢  Day-to-day fundiig, managed by monitoring future. cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This
includes replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The consolidated entity
mainlains an active presence in domestic and international money markets and capital markets to enable this
to happen;
Monitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities;
Maintaining backup lines in the form of commitied and utticommitted facilities.

‘The consolidated entity utilise the following {inancing arrangemenls (o met liquidity requirements and thorefore
manage liquidity risk. The table below illustrates the commercial paper, medium term notes and bank facilities to
which the consolidated entity had access at reporting date.

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
{$'000) 3'000)

Entities in the consolidated entity have access to commercial paper, medivm
term notes and bank loan facititics:
Total facilities
Commercial paper, medium term notes and bank loan 11,318,349 8,649,642
- amount of Facilities used (4,935,156) (4,552,480)
- amount of facilities unused 6,383,193 4,097,162
Bank overdraft

The bank overdrafl is unsccured $4 million (2007: $4 million) facility. Tnicrest is charged at prevailing markct
rates. Bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review.

Money Market facilities
The company has access to both committed and uncosmitted money market facilities totalling $1.61 billion {2007
$0.85 billion) provided by various financial institations.

Uncommitted fucilities

Financial institutions providing uncommitted facilities are not obligated to extend funds to the Company. Funds
extended under the terms of uncommitted facilities may be recalled by the financial institution on demand.
Committed facilities

Committed facilities may be utilised on demand where the terms of the facility apreement are satisfied. Financial

institutions may recall fonds only on maturity of the instrument issued under the terms of the committed facility.

Interest on money market facilitics is charged al prevailing rates. The weighted average interest rate as at 31 March
2008 is 7.3% (2007: 6.3%)

All money market facilities are subject to annual review,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28. Financial Risk Maimgemant {continuned)
(¢) Liquidity risk (confinned)

Medium termi note and commercial paper programs

Medium term notes and commercial paper programs allow the Company to issue medium tetm notes and
commercial paper in either Anstralian or overssas matkets-up to a tofal of $9.704 billion (2007: $7.795 billion).
Subject to meeting conditions prescribed in the program documentation, the company can issue commercial paper
and medinm term notés to purchasers at any time.

Medium term notes and commercial pApPEr arc issu_éd at ‘pmvail‘ing market rates. The weighted average interest rate
as aL 31 March 2008 for medium term notes is 7.5% (2007: 6.4%) and for commercial paper is 7.4% (2007: 6.4%).

Credit Support Agreement

Holders of debt securities issued by the Company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by
Japanese law, one between Toyota Motor Corporation (“TMC") and Toyota Financial Services Corporation
(*TFSC") dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the Company date 7 August 2000 (together, the
“Credit Support Agreements™).

Securitios with respect to which a Trustee is appointed

The Trustee, Uniori Bank of California N.A., will have the right to elaim in favour of the holders of such scouritics
directly against TFSC and TMC to petforn {heir respective obligations voder the Credit Support Agreements by
makinig # written claim togother with a declaration to the effect that such holders will have recourse to the rights
given under the Credit Support Agreements. 1€ TESC andfor TMC receives such a claim from the Trustee, T FSC
and/or TMC shall indetnify, without further action or formality, the holders against any loss or damage resulting
from the failure of THFSC and/or TMC to perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support
Agreements. The Trustee nay then enforee the indemnity direcily against TFSC and/or TMC in favour of such
holders. If the Trustee, having become bound to proceed directly against TFSC and/or TMC, fuils to do so wilhin a
reasonable period thereafler o protect the interests of the holders of such sceuritics, and such failure shall be
continuing, the holders of such scouritics may themselves take the-actions mentioned above.

Securities with respect to which a Trustee isnot appointed :

Holdets of such securities will have the right to claim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective
obligations under the Credit Support Agrecments by making 4 written claim together with u declaration to the gffect
that the holder will have recourse to rights given under the Credit Support Agreements, IFTEFSC and/or T™MC
reccives such a claim from any holder of such securities, TFSC and/or TMC shall indemnify, without any forther
action or formality, the holder against any Joss or damage resulting from the failure of TFSC and/or TMC to
performa any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreetments, The holder of such securities
who made the claim may then enforce the indemnity directly against TFSC and/or TMC.

n consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between
TFSC and the Company as at 30 Martch 2001. The Credit Suppott Fee Agreement provides that the Company will
pay to TFSC a fee equivalent to a perceritage of the weighted average outstanding amount of the Company's
medium term notes and conmnercial paper that have the benefit of the Credit Support Agreements.

The dircetors are not aware of any inglances of writlen claim and declaration under the terms of the Credit Support
Agreements, in connection with the Company’s outstanding medium tertn notes and commercial paper.
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28.

©

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity risk {coutinued)

The table below presents the consolidated entity’s financial liabilities, net and ‘gross settled derivative financial
instruments inlo relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at reporling date to the contractual
maturity. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate swaps
the cash flows have been estimated using the forward interest rates applicable at the reporting date.

R L TPy 2O e A AR

<1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
31 March 2008 Month Months Months Yeurs Yeurs Total
{$'000) (3'000) . ($'000) ($7000) {$'000) (3'000)

Non-deriviitives
Banks & other financial
institutions 18,000 - - - - 18,000
Bonds & commercial paper 135,377 | 468,820 1,014,170 3,620,714 22,149 5,461,230
Total non derivatives 353,377 468,820 1,014,170 3,620,714 25,1491  5.479.230
Derivatives
Forward Foreign Exchange
Contracts

- bought currency {160,287} (178.503) - - - {278,790)

- 30ld currency 97,052 181,180 - - - 278,232
Interest Rate Swaps 15,064 (34,341) 28,992 (33,147) 3 (23,429)
Cross Currency Swaps

~Pay leg 14,200 64,989 107,744 1;298,489 26,958 1,512,380

- Receive leg - (68,895) (93,8433 (1,169,933) (22,1493 (1,354,820)
Tota) derivatives 26,029 ‘ (35.570) 42,893 935,409 4,812 133,573
Totnl 379,406 433,250 1,057,063 3,716,123 26,961 5,612,803

< 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
31 March 2007 Month Months Months Years Years Total
($'000} {8'000) {$'000) ($'000) ($'000) (57000}

Non~derivatives
PBanks & other financial
institutions 178,000 - - - - 178,000
Bonds & commercial paper 219,481 448,999 1,314,581 2,853,232 26,340 4,862,633
Total non derivatives 397,481 AAR090 | TAI14581 | 2,853,230 56,340 | 5,040,633
Derivatives
Forward Foreign Exchange
Contracts

- bought currency (49.471) (185.517) - - (234,988)

- sold currency 33,442 192,594 - - - 246,036
Interest Rate Swaps 11,319 (23,784 18,258 (12,288) - (6,495
Cross Currency Swaps

- Pay leg 1.361 115,175 643,956 553,153 28,587 1,344,232

- Receive leg - (15,519 (590,310)]  (512,873) (26,3400 (1,245,042)
Total derivatives 16,651 {17,051) 73,904 27,992 2,247 103,743
‘Total 414,132 431,948 1,388,485 2,881,224 28,587 5,144,376
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28. Financial Risk Management (continied)
{d) Fair value estimstion

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) Is determined using valuation techniques. The consolidated entity uses methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at balance date, Estimated discounted cash flows is uscd
1o determine fair value for financial instruments. The air value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange coniracis is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the reporting date.

The table below summarises the carrying amounts atid the fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not
presented on the vonsolidated entity’s balance sheet at fair value.

Consolidated Consolidnted
2008 2008 2007 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
($'000) (3'000) (8'000) {3'000)
Financial Assets
Loans and advances 5,678,999 5,652,957 5,194,438 57223882
5,678,999 5,652,957 5,194,438 5,225,882
Financial Linbilities
Bonds and commercial paper . 4917,156 4,059 643 4374480 4423,126
4,917,156 4,959,643 4,374,480 4423,126
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29. Financial reporting by segments

{a) Business segments
"The following business segments are detesmined based on the risks and returns inherent in the company's product range:
- Retail finance comprising loans and leases to personal and business customers;
- Wholesale finance comprising loans and bailment facilities to motor vehicle dealors;

,Remi’l'ﬁmmce Wholes:tle finance Consolidated

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

($'000y (3000 (5'000) (8'000) (3'000) ($'000)
Revenue
Segment revenue from extemel costormers 357,352 311,159 99,540 86,059 436,992 397,218
Other unallocated revenue - -
Total revenue 436,992 397,218
Result
Sepmenit result 32,897 £7 491 6,802 7,969 59,699 53,466
Shate of net profit of equity accounied 5225 3,389
Uhallocated net benefit/(expénses) 25937 1,622
Profit béfore indome tax 90,861 62471
Income tax expesise {263349) (17,868)
Profit for the year 04,527 44,609
Net profit arrived at afier charging the following
jems:
- Depreciation 2231 2,225 ] 1 2238 2,226
- Amortisation 6,696 6,060 43 9 6,738 6,089
- Impairment of loans and advances 12,635 11,355 177 s} 12812 11,582
- Other non-cash expenses 21,160 17,048 . . 21,160 17,048
Assets _ ‘
Segment assets 4,320,080 3,889,252 1422492 1345427 5,743 581 5,234,679
Fauity accounted investments 42,446 39,495
Unaflocated assels 4943] 108,358
Tolal assets 5,834,458 5382532
Liabitities
Segment fabilities 3,982,999 3,627,202 1,211,164 1,132,283 5,194,163 4,759,485
Unallotated liabilities 135435 163,973
Tolal lisbilitics 5,329,398 4,923 458
Acquisitioris-of non-currenl assels 6,130 13,469 - - 6,130 13,469

() Geopraphical segnents
The company's business segments aperate predominately m Australasta.
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30,

31

Subsequent events

The directors are hot aware of any other matter or circwmstance not otherwise déalt with in the report or
consolidated aceounts (hat has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity,
the results of those operations, or the'state of affairs of the consolidated entity in subsequent-financial years.

Contingent linbilities

The company has provided total guarantees of $764,000 (2007: $764,000) to third parties on behall of three
motor dealers.

The company, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited GST Group, is jointly and
severally liable for 100% of the goods and services tax (GS1) payable by the GST Group of $8,840,000 as at 31
March 2008 (2007: $5,941,000). The directors believe the assets of the other members of the GST Group are

-----

The company, in association with other Australian incorporated entities- with a common owner, implemented the
tax consolidation legislation from | April 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia’ Limited as the Head
Entity. Under the tax consolidation legislation, tax consolidation entities: axe joititly and severally liable for the
tx liability of the consolidated tax group unless a tax sharinig agreemient has been entered into' by member
cntitics. AL the date of signing this [inancial report a tax sharing agrecment has been exeeuted. The dircetors
believe the assets of the Head Entity are sufficient io meet the tax liabilitics as they fall due.

The company has been notified by the Australian Tax Office of adjustments to its income tax returns relating to
years prior to the implementation of the tax consolidation legislation. The company expects that any cost or
impost which arises in relation to this matter will be offset by an intercompany receivable.

The range of Toyota Insurance warraity contragts (previously Toyota Extra Care), offered by the company since
August 2003, provide an extended warranty (o, the customer in exchange for an upiront premivm payment. The
risk of claims has been fully insured with third party insurers. The directors consider the insurance of risk is
qufficient to meet any claims which may eventuale.

A previous range of Toyota Extra Care warranty contracts, offered by the company until August 2003 and tow in
nun-off, provided an extended wairanty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium payment.
Recognition of premium income has been spread over the warranty period (o match the expected pattern of
claims. A varying degree of risk has also been insured with # ihird parly insurer. The directors consider the
amount correctly deferred and the partial insurance of risk is sufficienl to meet any claims which may eveninate.

A fully maintained operating lease is offered under the company’s current portfolio of products. Fully
maintained operating leases obligate the company to provide agreed services at the company's expense: A charge
is added to the monthly operating lease rentdl lo compensate the company’s cbligation. Agreed services
expensed periodically throughout the course of the contracl are recognised in the income stalement when
incurred.

Litigation continues against the company by the liquidator of a former hirer seeking repayment of a number of
alleged preferential paymentsfuncormnercial transactions made prior to its insolvency. The dircelors have sought
legal advice and are of the opinicn that the claim can be successfully resisted. Due to the nature of the matter,
further information normally required by A4SB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingeni Assets, is
not provided.
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32.

Decd of cross gunrantee

Toyota Finance Australia Limited and TFA (Wholcsale) Pry Limited arc pariies to a deed of cross guarantee
under which each company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned
cntities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare 4 financial report and a directors” report under Class
Order 98/1418 (as amended by Class Order 98/2017, 00/0321, 01/1087, 02/0248 and 02/1017) issued by the
Australian Securities and Tnvestments Conumission,

The shove companies represent a “Closed Group” for the purpioses of the Class Order, and as there are no other
parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are conirolled by Toyota Finance Anstralia Limited, they also
represent the “Extended Closed Group”

The consolidated financial statements cover the entities which are parties to the deed of cross gudrantee.
Consequently, the consolidated financial statements reflect the consolidated income statement and consolidated
balance shect, comprising the company and the controlled cntitics which arc a party to the Deced, after climinating
all transactions between patties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 31 March 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the directors’ opinion:

(a) the financial starements and notes set out on pages 9 to 49 are in accordance with the Corporations Aet 2001,
including:

{1 complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as al 31 March
2008 and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the year
ended on that date; and

(b) there ure reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be abile 1o pay ity debts as and when they become due
and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

For and on hehalf of the Bosrd

R.P. Springer
Director

5 50 (=2

11, Tkoma
Director

SYDMEY
27 JUNE 2008
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

Darling Park Tower 2
201 Sussex.Street
GPO BOX 2650
SYDNEY NSW 1171

. L . . DX 77 Sydney
Independent auditor’s report to the members of Australia

, . . ) T Y Telephone +61 2 8266 0000
Toyota Finance Australia Limited Faceiinle +61 2 8266 9009

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the
company), which comprises the balance sheet-as at 31 March 2008, and the income statement,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, &
summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration
for the Toyota Finance Australia Limited group (the consolidated enfity). The consolidated entity
comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during
the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The-diréctors of the company are responsible for the praparation and fair presentation of the
financial reportin accordance with Australian Ascounting: Standards (icluding the Australian

Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001, This responisibility includes establishing

and maintaining internal control refevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the firancial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalents to
International Finiancial Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the
financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit iri accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that
we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the-entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose-of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also Incliudes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Our procedures include reading the other information in the Annual Report to determine whether it
contains any material inconsistencies with the financial report.

Liability imited by & scheme approved under Professlonal Standards Legislation 51




PRICEVWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

Independent auditor’s report to the mem bers of
Toyota Finance Australia Limited
(continued)
For further explanation of an audit, visit our website hitp:/fwww.pwe.com/au/financialstatementaudit.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and apprapriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Indepéndence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence réquirements of the Corporations
Act 2001.

Auditor's-opinion on the financial report
In our opinion;

(a) the financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consalidated entity’s financial position as at 31
March 2008 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

{ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financlal report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 1.

LW e longess

PricewaterhouseCoopers

e,

PK Merrett Sydney
Partner 27 Juné 2008
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3. Responsibility Statement
The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

(a) the financial statements and notes set out in the Annual Financial Report are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

@) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations
200! and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(i)  giving a true and fair view of TFA’s and the Group’s financial position as
at 31 March 2008 and of its performance, as represented by the results of
its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that date;

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that TFA will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable; and

(c) the management report set out on pages 1 to 20 includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of TFA and the
Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they
face.
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